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Our Mission 

WE WORK TO CREATE A BETTER FUTURE EVERYDAY 

We help people feel good, look good and get more out 

of life with brands and services that 


are good for them and good for others. 


We will inspire people to take small everyday actions that 

can add up to a big difference for the world. 


We will develop new ways of doing business that will allow 

us to double the size of our company while reducing our 


environmental impact. 


OUR VALUES 

INTEGRITY 

RESPECT 


RESPONSI Bl LITY 

PIONEERING 
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Our Brands 
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Company Profile 

Unilever Nigeria is where great people, terrific brands 
and proud traditions converge, to meet and satisfy the 
needs of people and families across Nigeria. We 
anticipate the aspirations of our consumers and 
customers, and respond creatively and competitively with 
branded products and services that are good for them 
and good for others. 

Unilever Nigeria is a member of the Unilever Group, one 
of the world's leading consumer goods companies whose 
food, home and personal care brands are used by over 
half of the families on the planet each day. Unilever 
Nigeria Pie. was established in 1923 as a soap 
manufacturing company - West Africa Soap Company­
by Lord Leverhulme. It later became known as Lever 
Brothers Nigeria. Today, it is the longest serving 
manufacturing organization in Nigeria. 

After a series of mergers and acquisitions, the Company 
diversified into manufacturing and marketing of foods 
and personal care products. These mergers and 
acquisitions brought in Lipton Nigeria Limited in 1985, 
Cheesebrough Industries Limited in 1988 and Unilever 
Nigeria Limited in 1996. The Company changed its name 
to Unilever Nigeria Pie. in 2001 in line with the global 
strategic direction of the business. 

The Company was quoted on the Nigerian Stock 
Exchange in 1973 and is a truly Multi-local Multinational 
organization with very outstanding international and 
local brands in her portfolio. The international brands 
include Close-Up toothpaste, Pepsodent toothpaste, LUX 
beauty soap, Lifebuoy soap, Rexona, Vaseline lotion and 
Vaseline Petroleum Jelly in the Personal Care Unit of the 
business; Blue Band Margarine, Lipton Yellow Label Tea 
and Knorr bouillon cubes in the Foods Unit; and OMO 
Multi-Active Detergent, Sunlight washing powder and 
Sunlight Dish washing liquid in the Home Care Unit. 
Other Regional and local jewels include the Pears Baby 
Products range and Royco bouillon cubes. The Company 
provides sources of income to tens of thousands of 
Nigerians who are shareholders, distributors, suppliers, 
service providers and employees. 

Unilever believes in taking small everyday actions that 
can make a big difference for consumers, the 
communities in which it operates and the environment. A 
typical Unilever employee has passion and commitment 
to win and constantly looks for opportunity through 
insights to make a difference. 

Unilever subscribes to the highest standards of corporate 
behaviour by being transparent in her dealings, fair in 
competition, and law abiding. In a challenging operating 
environment like Nigeria, the Company remains a pride 
in the area of Corporate Governance by strictly adhering 
to Unilever's Global Code of Business Principles (CoBP). 
The Company is also a socially responsible and 
responsive organization. Unilever has delivered 
significant social investments that have helped create a 
brighter future for numerous Nigerians. 

The Company has also leveraged its great brands to 
impact lives positively. In line with the social mission of 
health and hygiene, through brands like Close Up, 
Pepsodent and Lifebuoy, Unilever has organized various 
outreach programmes that have enlightened Nigerians 
on the health benefits of handwashing and brushing 
twice a day. As the company drives these impactful 
initiatives, Unilever employees are also encouraged to 
contribute meaningfully to the society through voluntary 
services aimed at improving lives of the less privileged. 
The Company has high growth aspirations, with a vision 
to double its business size over the next few years while 
reducing environmental impact. 

Unilever Nigeria's confidence in the Nigerian economy is 
unwavering and will remain a major player in the country 
by continually investing, developing capabilities and 
growing brands that most suit the consumers' needs. 
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Board of Directors, Officers 
and Other Corporate Information 

Directors 
His Majesty Nnaemeka A. Achebe CFR, mni 
Obi of Onitsha 
Mr. Yaw Nsarkoh (Ghanaian) 
Mrs. Abiola Alabi 
Ammuna Lawan Ali OON 
Mr. Felix Enwemadu 
Mr. Atedo N. A. Peterside, CON 
Mrs. Adesola Sotande-Peters 
Mr. Mutiu Sunmonu CON, FNSE 
Mr. James Todd (British) 

Legal Director & Company Secretary 
Mrs. Abidemi Ademola 

Registered Office 
l Billings Way 
Oregun 
lkeja, Lagos. 
Tel : 01 279 3000 
Email: Consumercare.nigeria@unilever.com 

Company Registration Number 
RC 113 

Independent Auditors 
KPMG Professional Services 
KPMG Towers 
Bishop Aboyade Cole Street 
Victoria Island 
Lagos. 

Registrar and Transfer Office 
GTL Registrars Limited 
274, Murtala Muhammed Way 
Alagomeji, Yaba, Lagos. 
Tel : 012793161- 2 & + 018131925 
Email : info@gtlregistrars.com 

-Non-Executive Chairman 

-Managing Director 
-Independent Non-Executive Director 
-Independent Non-Executive Director 
-Executive Director (Appointed w.e.f. 25 October, 2016) 
-Non-Executive Director 
-Executive Director 
-Independent Non-Executive Director 
-Non-Executive Director 
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Results at a glance 

2016 2015 
N'000 N'000 

Revenue 69,777,061 59,221,748 

Operating Profit 5,805,045 4,639,690 

Profit before tax 4,106,422 1,771,063 

Taxation (1,034,537) (578,697) 

Profit for the year after tax 3,071,885 l , 192,366 

Capital employed 11 ,689,943 8,003,253 

Capital expenditure 4,228,146 5,068,498 

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 2,313,444 1,906,568 

Cash and cash equivalents 7,474,141 (7, l 00,428) 

Earnings per share (Neira) 0.81 0.32 
Net Assets per share (Neira) 3.09 2.12 
NSE share price at 31 December 35.00 43.25 

Ratio % Revenue 

Operating costs 92% 92% 

Operating profit 8% 8% 

Profit after tax 4% 2% 
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Notice of Annual General Meeting 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Ninety-second (92nd) Annual General Meeting of Unilever Nigeria Pie. will be held at 
the Shell Hall, Muson Centre, Onikan, Lagos on Thursday 11 May, 201 7 at 10.00am for the following purposes: 

Ordinary business: 
l. 	To lay before the Members, the Report of the Directors, the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 

31 December, 2016 together with the Reports of the Audit Committee and the Independent Auditors thereon. 

2. 	 To declare a Dividend. 

3. 	 To elect/re-elect Directors. 

4. 	 To authorize the Directors to fix the remuneration ofthe Independent Auditors. 

5. 	 To elect members of the Audit Committee. 

Special business: 
6. 	 To fix the Directors fees. 

7. 	 To consider and if thoughtfit, pass the following resolution as an ordinary resolution of the Company: 
"That, pursuant to Rule 20.8 of the Rulebook of the Nigerian Stock Exchange 2015: Issuers Rule, a general 
mandate be and is hereby given authorizing the Company during the 2017 financial year and up to the date of 
the next Annual General Meeting, to procure goods, services and financing and enter into such incidental 
transactions necessary for its day to day operations from its related parties or interested persons on normal 
commercial terms consistent with the Company's Transfer Pricing Policy. All transactions falling under this 
category which were earlier entered into in 2017 prior to the date of this meeting are hereby ratified." 

8. 	 To consider and if thought fit, pass the following resolution as an ordinary resolution of the Company: 
"That in accordance with Article 45 of the Articles of Association of Unilever Nigeria Pie, the Authorised Share 
Capital of the Company be and is hereby increased to N5,000,000,000.00 by the creation of 3,946,726,000 new 
ordinary shares of 50kobo each ranking in all respects pari passu with the existing shares of the Company" 

9. 	 To consider and if thought fit, pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution of the Company: 
"That Article 4 of the Articles of Association of the Company be and is hereby amended to read as follows: The 
Share Capital of the Company shall be N5,000,000,000.00 divided into 10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 
50kobo each". 

l 0. To consider and if thought fit, pass the following sub-joined resolutions as ordinary resolutions of the Company: 
"I. That subject to obtaining the approval of the relevant regulatory authorities, the Directors of the Company be 
and are hereby authorized to raise up to N63,000,000,000.00 (Sixty-Three Billion Neira) by way of Rights Issue, 
through the issuance of ordinary shares, on such other terms and conditions and at such time, as the Directors 
may deem fit or determine. 

ii. That the Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorized to apply any outstanding convertible loan, 
shareholder loan or other loan facility due to any person, from the Company, as may be agreed by the person and 
the Company, towards payment for anyshares subscribed for by such person under the Rights Issue. 

iii. That the Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorized to do all acts and things and to approve, sign 
and/or execute all documents, appoint such professional parties and advisers, perform all such other acts and do 
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Notice of Annual General Meeting {continued) 


all such other things as may be necessary to give effect 
to the above resolutions, including without limitation, 
complying with the directives of any regulatory 
authority. 

iv. That all acts carried out by the Directors and 
Management of the Company hitherto in connection 
with the above, be and are hereby ratified." 

NOTES: 

Proxy 
A member of the company entitled to attend and vote is 
entitled to appoint a proxy instead of him/her. A proxy 
need not also be a member. A detachable Proxy Form is 
enclosed and if it is to be valid for the purpose of the 
meeting, it must be completed and deposited at the office 
of the Registrars, GTL Registrars Ltd. 274, Murtala 
Muhammed Way, Alagomeji, Yaba, Lagos, not later than 
forty-eight (48) hours before the time of the meeting. 

Dividend warrants and closure of register 
The Board has recommended dividend payment which if 
approved, is payable less withholding tax. Dividend 
warrants will be payable on Friday, 12 May 2017 to the 
shareholders who are on the Company's Register of 
Members at the close of business on Thursday 13 April, 
2017. 

NOTICE is therefore given that the Register of Members 
and Transfer books of the Company will be closed from 
Tuesday, 18 April, 2017 to Monday, 24 April, 2017 (both 
dates inclusive) to enable the preparation of payment of 
the dividend. 

Nominations for the Audit Committee 
The Audit Committee comprises of three (3) shareholders 
and three (3) Directors. In accordance with Section 359 
(5) of the Companies and Allied Matters Act Cap. C20, 
Laws of the Federation of Nigeria 2004, any shareholder 
may nominate another shareholder as a member of the 
Audit Committee by giving notice in writing of such 
nomination to the Company Secretary at least twenty-one 
(21) days before the date of the Annual General Meeting. 
The Securities and Exchange Commission's Code of 
Corporate Governance for public Companies stipulates 
that members of the Audit Committee should have basic 

financial literacy and should be able to read Financial 
Statements. We therefore request that nominations be 
accompanied by a copy ofthe nominee's curriculum vitae. 

In addition, Shareholders should please note the 
requirement of Rule 2(c) of the Financial Reporting 
Council of Nigeria Rule 2016 which states that 'Any 
person attesting, as a Chairman of Audit Committee, to 
annual report, financial statements, accounts, financial 
report, returns and other documents of a financial nature, 
shall be a professional member of an accounting body 
established by Act of National Assembly in Nigeria'. 

Rights of Securities' Holders to ask Questions 
Securities' Holders have a right to ask questions not only at 
the Meeting, but also in writing prior to the Meeting and 
such questions must be submitted to the Company via the 
Company Secretary on or before Thursday 4 May, 201 7 

Dated this 16 March, 2017 

By order of the Board 

Mrs. Abidemi Ademola 
Legal Director & Company Secretary 
FRC/2013/NBA/00000001646 

Registered Office 
1, Billings Way, 
Oregun, lkeja, 
Lagos. 
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Chairman 


His Maiesty Nnaemeka A. Achebe CFR, MNI 
Obi of Onitsha 

'The Company's performance for the year ended 31 December 2016 
shows sustained growth and resilience even under depressed economic 
conditions ..... Although Unilever Nigeria has not been insulated from the 
tough economic environment, we have remained focused on our short 
and long term growth ambitions with strong emphasis on operational 
intensity, cost efficiencies, growing market share across key categories 
as well as reinvesting behind our iconic brands.' 



Chairman's Statement 

Esteemed Shareholders, fellow Board members, 
representatives of Regulatory Bodies present, 
distinguished ladies and gentlemen, I warmly welcome 
you to the 92nd Annual General Meeting of our 
Company to present to you the Report and Financial 
Statements for the year ended 31 December, 2016, 
review the Company's performance during the financial 
year and address other salient matters. 

Economic and Business environment in 2016 
The global economy was a mixed bag in 2016 with 
highlights of weaker-than-expected growth rate in the 
United States economy, political tensions resulting from 
the U.S. presidential elections, vote for the exit of the 
United Kingdom from the European Union and the 
Emerging economies losing steam on growth. The 
Nigerian economy on its part experienced its first 
recession in over two decades with three consecutive 
quarters of negative growth in 2016. The economy 
contracted year on year by 0.36 % in Ql, 2.06 % in Q2 
and further by 2.24% in Q3. The dismal economic 
climate in 2016 was driven largely by low government 
earnings, dearth of foreign exchange and multiple 
monetary policies to manage the forex crunch resulting 
from a protracted regime of low global crude oil prices 
and unresolved issues around local production. The 
Manufacturing sector was severely hit by the restriction 
around valid for foreign exchange items and inability to 
source foreign exchange at predictable rates for raw 
materials critical for its manufacturing processes. 
Disposable income reduced drastically resulting in 
consumers making tough choices based on affordability 
and dire need. The prognosis is that the Nigerian 
economy calls for significant interventions and concerted 
restructuring in the short to medium term. 
Unilever is however more resolute than ever to continue 
to forge ahead despite the business operating 
environment. Our company will continue to build on its 
performance culture fueled by operational intensity to tap 
into the latent opportunities which exist within Nigeria 
nevertheless. 

Results and performance 
Unilever Nigeria Plc.'s audited results for the year ended 
31 December 2016 shows a 17.8% increase in turnover 
from N59.2bn in December 2015 to N69.8bn in 
December 2016. Profit after tax for the year ended 31 

December, 2016 increased significantly by 158% to 
N3.07bn from Nl. l 9bn reported for the year ended 31 
December 2015. 

The Company's performance for the year ended 31 
December 2016 shows sustained growth and resilience 
even under depressed economic conditions. Cost of sales 
increased by 29.6% from N38bn for the year ended 
December 31, 2015 to N49bn for the year ended 
December 31, 2016 reflecting rising costs particularly 
raw material costs that are significantly exposed to 
foreign currency volatility. Marketing and administrative 
expenses reduced by 16% from N l 3.6bn for year ended 
December 31, 2015 to Nll.5bn for the year ended 
December 31, 2016 while other income grew by 60% to 
Nl 24m from N77.5m in 2015. 

Net finance costs reduced by 41 % to N l.7bn for the year 
ended December 31, 2016 compared to N2.9bn 
reported for the corresponding period in 2015. The 
results show that net finance cost as a function of 
operating profit improved significantly to 29% (2015: 
62%), reflecting improvements in cash management. 

Unilever Nigeria Pie. is dogged about ensuring sustained 
and steady growth in the company's operations to 
achieve improved returns on investments. Although 
Unilever Nigeria has not been insulated from the tough 
economic environment, we have remained focused on 
our short and long term growth ambitions with strong 
emphasis on operational intensity, cost efficiencies, 
growing market share across key categories as well as 
reinvesting behind our iconic brands. 

Dividends 
Unilever Nigeria Pie. remains committed to driving 
returns on investments to shareholders. However, our 
company recognizes that these are unusual times in 
which prudence demands that the Company continues to 
plough back into the business in the short to medium term 
to secure a sustainable future. Even in this period of 
downturn we are investing heavily in our factories, 
people, processes and brands in order to continue to 
build the needed capabilities to win sustainably into the 
future. Accordingly, subject to your approval, the Board of 
Directors recommends a dividend payout of 
N378,330,000.00 (Three Hundred and Seventy-Eight 
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Chairman's Statement (continued) 

Million, Three Hundred and Thirty Thousand Naira) that is, l O kobo gross per share which represents a l 00% increase 
from the dividend paid for the year ended 31 December, 2015. 

The Board of Directors reiterates the drive for the implementation of electronic dividend and electronic bonus payment 
system in line with the Regulatory direction of the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) to eradicate the incidence of 
unclaimed dividend and total dematerialization of share certificates. On behalf of the Board, shareholders are requested 
to complete the e-dividend/e-bonus Application Form in the Annual Report and Financial Statements and submit to the 
Registrars, GTL Registrars Limited. 

Board 
During the period under review, Mr. Ologbaraete Pinnick exited the Board with effect from 16 May, 2016 and Mr Felix 
Enwemadu was appointed as Executive Director with effect from 25 October, 2016. We wish Mr. Ologbaraete Pinnick well 
in his future endeavours and welcome Mr. Felix Enwemadu to the Board of Unilever Nigeria Pie. 

Acknowledgements 
We remain indebted to all our stakeholders for standing by our Company in trying times. This enabled us to deliver positive 
performance against the odds. Our appreciation goes to all our shareholders, employees, customers, consumers, 
suppliers, bankers and other business partners who have continued to weather the storm with us. We look forward to a 
better 2017 for our brands and our great company which you are all an important part of. 

Outlook 
At Unilever Nigeria, we believe that 'when the going gets tough, the tough get going'. Our Company will therefore 
continue to focus on operational intensity and brilliant execution basics to navigate the twists and turns within our 
operating environment and consolidate on the gains of 2016 to ensure we remain consistent in realizing our growth 
ambitions in a sustainable way. 

Thank you for listening. 

HIS MAJESTY NNAEMEKAA. ACHEBE CFR, MNI 
OBI OF ONITSHA 
FRC/2013/NIM/00000001568 
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Boa rd Profile 


His Majesty Nnaemeka A. Achebe, Obi of Onitsha, had a 30­
year career with the Royal Dutch Shell Petroleum Group of 
Companies in Nigeria and overseas. He is the past Chairman 
of Diamond Bank Pie. and Chairman of lntafact Beverages 
Ltd. (subsidiary of SABMiller Pie.) He is also the Chairman of 
Anambra State Traditional Rulers Council, and Chancellor of 
Kogi State University and Ahmadu Bello University, Zaria. He 
was educated at Stanford and Columbia Universities in the 
U.S.A and also attended the National Institute for Policy and 
Strategic Studies, Kuru. He was appointed to the Board of 
Unilever Nigeria Pie. in March 2003. 

Mr. Peterside (a Commander of the Order of the Niger) is the 
Founder of Stanbic IBTC Bank Pie. He is also the Founder and 
Chairman of ANAP Business Jets Limited as well as Chairman 
of Cadbury Nigeria Pie. He also sits on the Board of Directors 
of The Standard Bank of South Africa Limited, Standard Bank 
Group Limited, Flour Mills of Nigeria Pie. and Nigerian 
Breweries Pie. (Heineken Subsidiary). He was the Chairman of 
the Committee on Corporate Governance of Public 
Companies in Nigeria which crafted the first Code of Best 
Practices for Public Companies operating in Nigeria. The 
Code was published in October 2003. He was appointed to 
the Board of Unilever Nigeria Pie. in January 2008. 
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Boa rd Profile 


Biola Ala bi is the Founder and Managing Partner of Biola Alabi 
Media, the media icon heads a dynamic consultancy with 
expertise in strategic consulting for pay entertainment, digital 
television, interactive television and emerging entertainment 
distribution platforms; they service governments, content 
creators, telecommunication industry, and investors in the 
converging media technology space. She is also the founder of 
"Grooming for Greatness" a leadership development and 
mentorship program for a new generation of African leaders. 
Named one of the 20 Youngest Power Women in Africa by 
Forbes Magazine (2012), a World Economic Forum Young 
Global Leader (2012) and CNBC Africa's MBLAWest African 

Business Woman of the Year (2013), Yale World Fellow (2014). For over five highly successful years, 
Biola Alabi held the high-profile position of Managing Director for M-Net Africa, part of the globally 
renowned Naspers Group. Prior to this, she was based in the United States where she was part of the 
executive team at the influential children's television brand Sesame Street. An alumni of the University 
of Cincinnati, Alabi has spent recent years polishing her knowledge with Executive Education Programs 
at Harvard University's Kennedy School of Government and Yale University's Jackson Institute of Global 
Affairs. She was appointed to the Board of Unilever Nigeria Pie. in December, 2015. 

Ammuna Lawan Ali, a retired Federal Permanent Secretary, 
commenced her Civil Service career in 1977 as a Planning 
Officer in the Barno State Ministry of Lands and Survey, 
Maiduguri, where she rose to the position of Permanent 
Secretary. In 1995, Ammuna Lawan Ali transferred her services 
to the Federal Civil Service as a director and served in the Ministry 
of Women Affairs and Social Development and of Finance. In 
January 2001, Ammuna Lawan Ali was appointed a Permanent 
Secretary and served in various Ministries, including those of 
Commerce, Petroleum Resources, Transportation, Works, 
Environment, Housing and Urban Development, and briefly in 
the office of Civil Service and the Ministry of Information and 
Communications. She retired from service in December 2009. 
Ammuna Lawan Ali is a proud recipient of the Order of the Niger 

honour and a member of the National Institute of Policy and Strategic Studies (NIPSS) Kuru. She holds a BA 
(Hons) and Masters Degree in Public Administration. She is an Independent Director of Africa Prudential 
Registrars Pie. She was appointed to the Board of Unilever Nigeria Pie. in December, 2015. 
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Boa rd Profile 


Mutiu Sunmonu, CON graduated from the University of 
Lagos in 1977 with a first-class degree in Mathematics and 
Computer Sciences. He joined Shell Petroleum Development 
Company of Nigeria Limited (SPDC) in August 1978 as a 
Computer Programmer/Business Analyst. While in Shell, he 
served in various capacities both in Nigeria and abroad 
ranging from Senior EDP Auditor to the Head, Information 
Planner/Portfolio Consultant; IT Manager; Area Production 
Manager; Asset Manager and Regional Business Adviser at 
the Shell Headquarters at The Hague, supporting China and 
Thailand, and then General Manager Production for the 
SPDC Eastern operations. In 2005, he joined the Board of 
SPDC following his appointment as Executive Director, 

Corporate Affairs, prior to his appointment on January l, 2008 as the Managing Director of SPDC. After 
36 years of meritorious service, Mr. Mutiu Sunmonu retired from Shell as the Managing Director of SPDC, 
and Country Chair of Shell Companies in Nigeria. Since his retirement, he continues to be active in the Oil 
and Gas Industry. He is currently the chairman of Petralon Energy Nigeria and the chairman of San Leon 
Energy UK. He is the Chairman of Julius Berger Nigeria Pie. and the Chairman of Imperial Homes 
Mortgage Bank. He was appointed to the Board of Unilever Nigeria Pie. in December, 2015. 

James Todd is Vice President Finance for Africa. He is British, 
and graduated from University of Durham with a degree in 
Philosophy. His professional career began in 1986 with 
Unilever in UK where he qualified as a Chartered 
Management Accountant. From 1993 to 1997 he was 
expatriated to Poland, where his roles covered both Supply 
Chain and Finance, before returning to Unilever's Corporate 
Centre in London where he worked on strategy development. 
In 2003, he was appointed Finance Director of Unilever South 
Africa, and in 2006 became Vice President Finance, Africa 
Middle East & Turkey. In August 2009 he was appointed 
Managing Director Unilever Maghreb and he was appointed 
VP Finance Africa in July 2013. He was appointed to the 
Board of Unilever Nigeria Pie. in November, 2015. 
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Board Profile 


Mr. Yaw Nsarkoh is the Executive Vice President (EVP) of 
Unilever Nigeria and Ghana and the Managing Director of 
Unilever Nigeria Pie. He holds an Honors Degree in 
Chemical Engineering from the University of Science and 
Technology, Kumasi, Ghana and a Post Graduate Diploma in 
Management from Henley Management College, UK. His 
career spans over 24 years in Unilever businesses across 
Africa, Asia, and Europe. At various times, he worked as 
Managing Director, Unilever East and Southern Africa, based 
in Kenya, as Strategic Assistant to Unilever Leadership 
Executive Member and President of Unilever Asia, Africa, 
Central and Eastern Europe based in the UK, as Marketing 
Director, Unilever Ghana Ltd ., as African Regional Brand 
Manager Laundry at the Unilever Innovation Centre, South 

Africa etc. He is a member of Ghana Institution of Engineers, a Director of Changing Lives Endowment 
Fund (CLEF) in Ghana and a member of the Institute of Directors, Nigeria. Mr Nsarkoh currently sits as 
council member on Industry Associations and Strategic Private Sector Committees in Nigeria. He is a 
regular speaker on business issues. He was appointed to the Board of Unilever Nigeria Pie. in January, 
2014. 

Mr. Felix Enwemadu is the Vice President Customer 
Development. Prior to this position, he was the Head of 
Customer Development and Customer Development 
Director, General Trade respectively at Unilever Nigeria Pie., 
General Manager at Diageo Brands Nigeria Ltd, Sales 
Director at Nutricima Nig. Pie, Head of Sales Notore 
Chemicals Industries Ltd and occupied Sales Management 
positions at Guinness and Procter & Gamble. He is an 
experienced business sales professional with over 17 years' 
experience. He holds a Bachelor of Science Degree in 
Geology from Nnamdi Azikiwe University, Awka, Anambra 
State. 
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Boa rd Profile 


Mrs. Adesola Sotande-Peters holds a bachelor degree in 
Business Administration and Economics from Richmond 
College, The American International University in London. 
She also has an MBA for finance professionals from 
Manchester Business School. She is a fellow of the Association 
of Certified Chartered Accountants (ACCA) and member of 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nigeria (ICAN). Her 
career spans over 22 years in various organizations such as 
British Broadcasting Corporation (BBC), lnforma Group UK, 
Openwave Telecoms UK, Diageo Pie (Guinness Nigeria Pie, 
East African Breweries Limited, and Guinness Cameroon SA) 
where she has held various senior finance roles. She is a 
member of the Institute of Directors, Nigeria, an Associate 

member of Women in Management, Business & Public Services (WIMBIZ) and a Fellow of the 
WIMBOARD Institute, a WIMBIZ/IE University, Madrid Executive Education Programme for Women on 
Boards. Adesola is amiable and keen to nurture young professional colleagues. She was appointed to 
the Board of Unilever Nigeria Pie. in January, 2015. 

Mrs. Abidemi Ademola is a Corporate Counsel and 
Chartered Secretary with work experience spanning over 22 
years of Commercial Law and Corporate Governance 
practice in Nigeria and more recently in the West Africa 
Region. Her forte is identifying existing and emerging legal 
and corporate governance risks to business and proffering 
innovative solutions. Abidemi holds a Bachelor of Laws 
degree from the Obafemi Awolowo University, lle-lfe. and a 
Master of Laws degree from the University of Lagos, Akoka. 
She is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and 
Administrators of Nigeria and an Associate of the United 
Kingdom equivalent. She is also a member of the Nigerian 
Bar Association and the Society of Corporate Governance, 
Nigeria. She is an Associate member of Women in 
Management, Business & Public Services (WIMBIZ) and a 

Fellow of the WIMBOARD Institute, a WIMBIZ/IE University, Madrid Executive Education 
Programme for Women on Boards. She was appointed as Company Secretary in January 2012. 
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Report of the Directors 

The Directors submit their Report together with the 
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 
December 2016, which disclose the state of affairs of the 
company. 

Incorporation 
Unilever Nigeria Pie. is incorporated in Nigeria under the 
Companies and Allied Matters Act (CAP C20) Laws of the 
Federation of Nigeria, 2004 as a public limited liability 
company, and is domiciled in Nigeria. The company's 
shares are listed on the Nigerian Stock Exchange (NSE). 

Principal Activities 
The company is principally involved in the manufacture 
and marketing of foods and food ingredients, and home 
and personal care products. It has manufacturing sites in 
Oregun, Lagos State and Agbara, Ogun State. 

Results 
The results for the year are summarized as follows: 

N'OOO 

Revenue 69,777,061 

Operating profit 5,805,045 

Profit before taxation 4,106,422 

Taxation (1,034,537) 

Profit after tax 3,071,885 

Other comprehensive income 742,739 

Proposed dividend 378,330 

Dividend 
The Directors recommend to the shareholders, payment 
of a dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December, 
2016, of N378,330,000 that is, 10 kobo gross per share 
which is payable on Friday, 12 May, 2017 subject to the 
deduction of appropriate withholding tax. 

Corporate Governance Report 

Framework 
Unilever Nigeria Pie. operates within a Corporate 
Governance framework founded on the following: 

1. The Unilever Code of Business Principles and Code 
Policies. 

2. The Governance of Unilever Document. 
3. The Memorandum and Articles ofAssociation of 

Unilever Nigeria Pie. 
4. 	The SEC Code of Corporate Governance for Public 

Companies 2011. 
5. Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) Rules for 

the time being in force. 
6. Companies and All ied Matters Act (Cap C20) LFN 

2004. 
7. The Rule Book of the Nigerian Stock Exchange for the 

time being in force. 

From the above the Corporate Governance Policy of 
Unilever Nigeria Pie. con be summed up os follows: 

a. 	 We conduct our operations with honesty, integrity 
and openness and with respect for the human rights 
and interests of the employees. 

b. 	 We shall similarly respect the legitimate interests of 
those with whom we have relationships. 

c. 	 As a Unilever Group company, we are required to 
comply with the laws and regulations of the countries 
in which we operate. 

d. 	 We will conduct our operations in accordance with 
internationally accepted principles of good 
corporate governance. We will provide timely, 
regular and reliable information on our activities, 
structure, financial situation and performance to our 
shareholders and other stakeholders. 

UNILEVER NIGERIA PLC -Annual Report & Financial Statements 
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Compliance with the above principles is an essential 
element in our business success and all employees and 
business partners of Unilever are mandated to comply 
with the above principles. 

During the year 2016, Unilever Nigeria Pie. complied 
with all the mandatory provisions of the Securities and 
Exchange Commission Code of Corporate Governance 
for Public Companies, 2011 together with the 
requirements of other good corporate governance 
standards listed above. 

Board composition 
The Directors who held office during the year 2016 and 
up to the date of this report are: 

His Majesty Nnaemeka A. Achebe, CFR, MNI 

Non-Executive Director and Chairman 

Mr. Yaw Nsarkoh 

Managing Director 

Mrs. Abiola Alabi 

Independent Non-Executive Director 

Ammuna Lawan Ali, OON 

Independent Non-Executive Director 

Mr. Felix Enwemadu 

Executive Director (Appointed w.e.f. 25 Oct., 2016) 

Mr. Atedo N.A. Peterside, CON 

Non-Executive Director 

Mr. Ologbaraete K. Pinnick 

Executive Director (Resigned w.e.f. 16 May, 2016) 

Mrs. Adesola Sotande-Peters 

Executive Director 

Mr. Mutiu Sunmonu, CON, FNSE 

Independent Non-Executive Director 

Mr. James Todd 

Non-Executive Director 

The following Director resigned from the Board since the 
last Annual General Meeting: 

• Mr. Ologbaraete Pinnick - resigned from the Board with 
effect from 16 May, 201 6 

Since the last Annual General Meeting, the following 
Director joined the Board: 

• Mr. Felix Enwemadu - joined the Board with effect from 
25 October, 2016. 

Board responsibilities 
The Board has the final responsibility for management, 
direction and performance of the company and has the 
powers, authorities and duties vested in it by the relevant 
laws and regulations of the Federal Republic of Nigeria 
and the Articles of Association of Unilever Nigeria Pie. The 
Board has overall responsibility for the management of 
risk and for reviewing the effectiveness of the internal 
control and risk management system within the company. 

The Board has delegated to the Chief Executive 
Officer/Managing Director all its powers, authorities and 
discretions which relate to the operations of Unilever 
Nigeria Pie. 

The powers, authorities and discretions exclusively within 
the remit of the Board and which currently have not been 
delegated include making or approving the following: 

1. Structural and constitutional powers 
a. Alteration ofthe Articles ofAssociation 
b. Alteration ofthe capital of the company 
c. Significant asset disposal 
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2. 	Governance 

a. 	 Convening of meetings of the shareholders of 
Unilever Nigeria Pie. and the setting of the agenda 
thereof and generally ensuring that a satisfactory 
dialogue with shareholders takes place. 

b. 	 Presentation of the annual report and financial 
statements to shareholders. 

c. 	 Reviewing and approving proposals from the 
Governance/Remuneration Committee. 

d. 	 Proposals to the general meetings of shareholders of 
Unilever Nigeria Pie. on the Board remuneration 
policy within the authority set by the general meeting 
of shareholders. 

e. 	 The review of the functioning of the Board and its 
committees. 

f. 	 Overall responsibility for compl iance with all relevant 
laws, regulations and Code of Corporate 
Governance. 

g. 	 The Operating Framework. 

Board appointment and evaluation 
process 
Unilever Nigeria Pie. appoints Directors in line with its 
Board recruitment process which devolves from its Code 
of Business Principles and Code Policies relating to 
human resources recruitment and the Governance of 
Unilever document. The basic principle underlining the 
process of recruitment of Directors in Unilever Nigeria 
Pie. are the qualifications, ability and skills required for 
the role and the ability to make visible and independent 
(where applicable) contribution to the governance of 
Unilever Nigeria Pie. in accordance with Unilever global, 
regional and local strategy and the relevant local legal 
requirements. These principles were applied during the 
appointment of the new Executive Director, Mr. Felix 
Enwemadu. 

The governance process in Unilever Nigeria Pie. provides 
for the induction and training of Directors by virtue of 
which Directors are taken through relevant and 
appropriate training programmes which equip them for 
the role. In accordance with its 70-20-10 principle 
Unilever believes that a major part of training will happen 
through on-the-job experience and exposure, 20% will 
happen through relationship building and interaction 
with the right calibre of people while the remaining l 0% 
will result from formal training. 

During the course of 2016, the Board went through a 
training session on Unilever's Route To Market to 
understand how Unilever's route to market hos 
transformed in recent years, the technology it deploys in 
this process and the direct impact on company sales. 

Unilever Nigeria Pie. provides the right atmosphere for its 
Directors to exhibit leadership and enhance their 
capabilities. Unilever Nigeria Pie. further provides 
relevant governance information to its Directors as the 
need arises and also facilitates circulation of essential 
governance documents to the Board from time to time to 
keep them updated on legal, regulatory and corporate 
governance trends. 

The Board of Directors of Unilever N igeria Pie. is 
evaluated locally and from the Unilever Africa Cluster 
Office on an annual basis. The Board and individual 
Directors are benchmarked against the requirements of 
the Unilever Code of Business Principles, the Code 
Policies, the laws and regulations of Nigeria, the SEC 
Code of Corporate Governance and other relevant 
governance provisions. The scope of evaluation covers 
compl iance, contribution to the Board agenda for the 
year, attendance at meetings, quality of discussions at 
Board meetings, level of engagement with government 
and the community and entrepreneurial acumen. 

In line with the Unilever Governance standards and in 
compliance with the SEC Code of Corporate 
Governance, the Board of Unilever Nigeria Pie. opted for 
an internal evaluation exercise in respect of period ended 
31 December, 2016 to review the performance of the 
Boord, individual Directors and Board Committees. The 
evaluation confirmed that Unilever governance practices 
during theyearended 31 December 2016 were largely in 
compliance with the provisions of applicable laws, 
regulations, corporate governance Codes and 
international best practices. 
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Directors retiring by rotation 

In accordance with Article 90 of the company's Articles of 
Association, Mr. James Todd and Mrs. Abiola Alabi will 
retire by rotation and being eligible, offer themselves for 
re-election. 

His Majesty, Nnaemeka A. Achebe will also retire by 
rotation and offer himself for re-election notwithstanding 
that he is over 70 years of age. A special notice of his age 
has been given to the Company pursuant to Section 256 
of the Companies and Allied Matters Act LFN 2004. 

In addition, Mr. Felix Enwemadu who was appointed 
since the last Annual General Meeting will retire at this 
meeting and being eligible, offer himself for re-election. 

The profiles of all the four (4) Directors standing for re­
election are contained on pages 17 to 21 of this Annual 
Report and Financial Statements. 

Board committees 
In line with the Code of Best Practices in Corporate 
Governance, the Board of Directors works through the 
following committees: 

a. Executive Committee (Exco) 
The Exco is a sub-committee of the Board and it is 
empowered by the Board to take decisions on behalf of 
the Board, which are necessary for the smooth day to day 
operations of the company. The committee is composed 
of the Executive Directors of the company. The following 
are currently members of the committee: 

I. 	Mr. Yaw Nsarkoh - Managing Director & Executive 
Vice President 

ii. Mrs. Adesola Sotande-Peters - Finance Director 

iii. Mr. Felix Enwemadu 	- Executive Director& Vice 
President Customer Development 

b. Leadership Team (LT) 
The Leadership Team is constituted by the Executive 
Directors and Senior Executives who occupy strategic 
roles in the organization. This Leadership Team is 
responsible for delivering the corporate targets of the 
company, establishing priorities, allocating resources, 
and seeing to the operations of the company on a day to 
day basis. The Leadership Team is chaired by the 
Managing Director/Chief Executive Officer of the 
company. Current members of the leadership team are 
as follows: 

I. 	 Mr. Yaw Nsarkoh -Managing Director & Executive 
Vice President 

11. 	 Mrs. Abidemi Ademola - Director, Legal & Company 
Secretory 

iii. Mrs. Bunmi Adeniba - Director, Brand Building 
(Home Care) 

iv. 	Mr. Bernard Conyers - Director, Manufacturing 
v. 	 Mr. Felix Enwemadu - Vice President, Customer 

Development 
vi. 	Mrs. Soromidayo George-Director, Corporate Affairs 
vii. Mrs. Bolanle Kehinde-Lawal- Refreshment Category 

Lead. 
viii. Mr. Thomas Mwanza - Director, Procurement 

Operations, WA 
ix. Mrs. Nsima Ogedi-Alakwe -Director, Brand Building 

(Foods) 
x. 	 Eniola Onimole- Director, Human Resources 
xi . Mr. George Owusu-Ansah- Director, Supply Chain 

Go-to-Market 
xii. Mr Siddharth Ramaswamy- Vice President, Supply 

Chain West Africa 
xiii. Mrs. Adesola Sotande-Peters - Finance Director 
xiv. Mrs. Bukola Sowunmi - Consumer and Marketing 

Insight Manager. 
xv. Mr. Mike Ubeh - Director, Customer Development 

c. The Audit Committee 
The Audit Committee, established in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 359(4) of the Companies and Allied 
Matters Act (CAP C20) Laws of the Federation of Nigeria, 
2004, is comprised of three (3) shareholders' 
representatives and three (3) Directors' representatives 
(two of whom are non-executive Directors and the other 
an executive director [not being the Finance Director). The 
chairman of the Audit committee is one of the 
shareholders' representatives. During the year under 
review, the committee met four (4) times. 
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The functions of the Audit Committee are governed by the provisions of Section 359(6) of the Companies and Allied 
Matters Act Cap 20 Laws of the Federation of Nigeria 2004 and the SEC Code of Corporate Governance for Public 
Companies 2011 . The Members of the Audit Committee and the Report of the Audit Committee to the members are 
contained on page 42. 

d. The Governance/Remuneration Committee 
The Governance/Remuneration Committee comprises solely of Non-Executive Directors and is chaired by the Non­
Executive Chairman of the Board. The Committee's Terms of Reference are in line with Paragraph 11 of the SEC Code of 
Corporate Governance 2011. Members of the Committee during the period ended 31 December, 2016were: 

i. 	 His Majesty Nnaemeka A. Achebe, MNI, CFR- Chairman 
ii. Ammuna Lawan Ali, OON - Independent Non-Executive Director 
iii. Mr. Atedo Peterside, CON - Non-Executive Director 
iv. Mr. Mutiu Sunmonu, CON, FNSE - Independent Non-Executive Director 

In 2016, all the above committees discharged their roles creditably and in line with their terms of reference. 

Board meetings 
During 2016, the Board held four meetings. The record of Directors' attendance is presented below: 

Meeting Meeting 

date date 


17 March, 14 April, 

Name 2016 2016 

His Majesty N.A. Achebe / / 

Mr. Yaw Nsarkoh / / 

Mrs. Abiola Alabi / / 

Ammuna Lawan Ali / / 

Mr. Felix Enwemadu NYA NYA 

Mr. A.NA Peterside / / 

Mr. O.K. Pinnick / / 

Mrs. Adesola Sotande-Peters / / 

Mr. Mutiu Sunmonu X / 
Mr. James Todd / / 
~	 Present X Absent with Apologies; NLB- No longer on the Board; 

NYA- Not yet appointed, AWEF-Appointed With Effect From 
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Meeting Meeting 
date date Total 

14 July, 25 October, attendance 
2016 2016 

/ / 4 Meetings 

/ / 4 Meetings 

/ / 4 Meetings 

X / 3 Meetings 

AWEF 25th
NYA 	 NilOct, 2016 

/ / 4 Meetings 

NLB NLB 2 Meetings 

/ / 4 Meetings 

/ / 3 Meetings 

/ / 4 Meetings 



Report of Directors (continued) 

Governance/Remuneration Commillee 
The Governance/Remuneration Committee held 3 meetings in 2016. The record of members' attendance is presented 
below: 

Meeting Meeting Meeting 
date date date Total 

Name 
14 April, 

2016 
14 July, 
2016 

25 October, 
2016 

attendance 

His Majesty N.A. Achebe / / / 3 Meetings 

Ammuna Lawan Ali / X / 2 Meetings 

Mr. A.N.A. Peterside / / / 3 Meetings 

Mr. Mutiu Sunmonu X / / 2 Meetings 

v'Present X Absent with Apologies 

Audit Committee meetings 
During 2016, the Audit Committee held four meetings. In the course of the year, Mr. Ologbaraete Pinnick, resigned from 
the Board and the Audit Committee and was subsequently replaced by Mr. Felix Enwemadu. The record of members' 
attendance is presented below: 

Meeting Meeting 

date date 


16 March, 13 July,

Name 2016 2016 

Alhaji W. Adegbite NYA / 


Mr. L. N. Onwuka / / 


Prince B. Adebanjo / NLAM 


Alhaji W. Ajani / / 


Mrs. A. Alabi NYA / 


Mr. 0 . K. Pinnick / NLAM 


Mr. James Todd 
 / / 

Meeting Meeting 

date date 
 Total 

19 October, 16 December, attendance 
2016 2016 

/ / 3 Meetings 

/ / 4 Meetings 

NLAM NLAM l Meeting 

/ / 4 Meetings 

X / 2 Meetings 

NLAM NLAM 1 Meeting 

/ X 3 Meetings 
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Record of Directors' attendance at Board 
meetings 
In accordance with section 258 (2) of the Companies and 
Allied Matters Act (CAP C20) Laws of the Federation of 
Nigeria, 2004 the record of the Directors' attendance at 
Directors' meetings during 2016 as listed above is 
available for inspection at the Annual General Meeting. 

Directors' interests in contracts 
Directors' interests in contracts for the year ended 31 

Mr. Atedo Peterside NLAM NLAM NLAM 1 Meeting 

Mr. Felix Enwemadu NYA NYA NYA X Nil 

v'Present X Absent with apologies; NLAM - No Longer A Member; NYA- Not Yet Appointed. 

December, 2016 were as follows: 

Nature of 
Name of Director the contract 

Mr. Atedo N.A. Pension Fund 
Peterside, CON Administrator 

Service 
Agreement with 
Stanbic IBTC 
Pension 
Manager Ltd 
& banking 
relationship 
with Stanbic 
IBTC Bank Pie. 

No other Director has notified the 

Directors' 
interest therein 

Chairman and 
Shareholder of 
Stanbic IBTC 
Holdings Pie. 
the Holding 
Company of 
Stanbic IBTC 
Pension 
Manager Ltd 
and Stanbic 
Bank Pie 

company for the 
purpose of section 277 of the Companies and Allied 
Matters Act (CAP C20) Laws of the Federation of Nigeria 
2004, of their direct or indirect interest in contracts or 
proposed contracts with the company during the year. 

Directors' shareholding 
The Register of Directors' interests in the share capital of 
the company will be open for inspection at the Annual 
General Meeting. 

The direct and indirect interest of Directors in the issued 
share capital of the company as recorded in the Register 
of Directors' Shareholdings and/or as notified by them for 
the purposes of sections 275 and 276 of the Companies 
and Allied Matters Act (CAP C20) Laws of the Federation 
of Nigeria, 2004 and the listing requirements of the 
Nigerian Stock Exchange are as follows: 

Name of Director 

His Majesty 
N.A. Achebe 

Mr. Yaw Nsarkoh 

Mrs. Abiola Alabi 

Ammuna 
Lawan Ali 

Mr. Felix 
Enwemadu 

Mr.A.NA 
Peterside (First 
ANAP Domestic 
Trust) 

Mr. O.K. Pinnick 

Mrs. Adesola 
Sotande-Peters 

Mr. Mutiu 
Sunmonu 

Mr. James Todd 

Number of 
shares held at 
31 Dec. 2016 

to 31 Mar. 2017 

Number of 
shares held at 
31 Dec. 2015 

55,976 55,976 

Nil Nil 

Nil Nil 

Nil Nil 

Nil Nil 

1,000,000 4,000,000 

16,649 

Nil 

16,649 

Nil 

Nil Nil 

Nil Nil 
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According to the register of members at 31 December 
2016, the following shareholders of the company held 
more than 5% of the issued share capital of the company: 

Shareholder Number of Percentage 
Shores held(%) 

Unilever Overseas 
(Cumulative holding) 

2,271,998,143 60.06% 

Stanbic Nominees 
Nigeria Ltd 
(Cumulative holding) 

394,484,759 10.43% 

The cumulative shareholding of Unilever Overseas 
increased to 2,271,998,143 following open market 
purchases made during open periods in 2016. 

Immediate and Ultimate Parent Companies 

Unilever Overseas Holdings B.V. and Unilever Pie 
United Kingdom. 

Share Dealing Policy 
In accordance with the Post-Listings Rules of the Nigerian 
Stock Exchange, Unilever Nigeria Pie. has in place a 
share dealing policy which regulates securities 
transactions by its Directors, Employees and other 
Insiders on terms which are no less exacting than the 
required standard set out in the Nigerian Stock Exchange 
Rules. The Policy and Closed Periods are communicated 
periodically to drive compliance. In respect of the year 
ended 31 December, 2016, the Directors of Unilever 
Nigeria Pie. hereby confirm that: 

1. A code of conduct regarding securities transactions by 
all Directors has been adopted by the Company. 

2 . Specific enquiry of all Directors has been made during 
the reporting period and there is no incidence of non­
compliance with the listing Exchange, and Unilever 
Nigeria's code of conduct, regarding securities 
transactions by Directors. 

Complaints Management Policy 
Framework 
In compliance with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission Rule Relating to the Complaints 
Management Framework of the Nigerian Capital Market 
("SEC Rules") 2016, Unilever Nigeria Pie. has further 
strengthened its complaints management procedure. The 
Company has in place a formal Complaints 
Management Policy effective by virtue of which 
complaints arising from issues covered under the 
Investment and Securities Act 2007 (ISA) are registered, 
promptly resolved and quarterly submission of same is 
made to the Nigerian Stock Exchange. 

Unilever Code of Business Principles 
Unilever Nigeria Pie. has zero tolerance for corruption 
and unethical practices and mandates its employees and 
business partners to adhere to all applicable laws and 
regulations, the Unilever Code of Business Principles and 
Code Policies. Unilever Code of Business Principles 
(COBP) prescribes a uniform standard of conduct 
expected of every Unilever operating company, employee 
and business partner. The COBP covers matters such as 
Obeying the law, Conflict of interest, Business integrity, 
Business partners, Shareholders and public activities, Fair 
Competition and Responsibility to our consumers. The 
Code Policies further spell out the 'must dos' and 'must 
nots' relating to each area under the COBP. Employees of 
Unilever Nigeria Pie. go through periodic mandatory 
trainings and Declarations and focused discussions to 
reinforce the COBP standards and drive compliance. 
Compliance with the COBP is mandatory and is 
monitored at the highest level of leadership. Internal and 
external confidential reporting lines are available to 
encourage reporting of breaches and sanctions are 
consistently applied for these breaches. In 2015 Unilever 
set up a dedicated Business Integrity organization 
separate and distinct from Audit and Risk organization to 
focus more on Code compliance and related matters. The 
Bl organization provides an effective framework for 
prevention, monitoring and enforcement. Unilever also 
makes it mandatory for all its business partners to sign up 
to compliance with its Responsible Business Partner Policy 
or Responsible Sourcing Policy as may be applicable. 
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Employment Policy 
At Unilever Nigeria, we strongly believe that in order to 
win in the market place, we must win with people and 
through people. This unwavering premise continues to 
guide us in the way we work and culminates in our 
policies and practices at every stage of our employment 
cycle. Thus, we strive to remain an equal opportunity 
employer who is passionate about diversity and 
inclusivity, mutual respect, as well as encouraging vibrant 
communication and consultation between employees 
and the leadership team. 

Our core values and Code of Business Principles define 
what we stand for and the framework in which we do 
business. These are values hinged on professional 
integrity, attaining and maintaining a pioneering mindset 
of innovation and continuous improvement, a 
responsibility to make a positive impact in the society in 
which we operate, and respect for all our stakeholders. 
These non-negotiables together with our standards of 
leadership define the kind of people that drive our 
business; people with Growth mindset, Consumer and 
Customer focus, Bias for action; people with a strong 
sense of Accountability and responsibility and who have 
the ability to build talent and teams. 

Talent Development 
Our people are an essential part of our sustainable 
competitive advantage in this ever increasingly connected 
world. This is why our most trusted principle in creating 
opportunities for development and connecting our 
employees with those opportunities has continued to set 
us apart within the FMCG industry. Thus while we 
encourage employees to take ownership of their personal 
development, we have robust technology enabled 
systems in place to help them develop better leadership, 
professional and general skills to enhance engagement 
and productivity. 

In addition to our focus on experiential development 
through on-the job deliverables, we implement various 
initiatives to complement other traditional learning 
methodologies, with our business leaders being at the 
fore-front of this drive. Thus, our "Leaders as Teachers" 
initiative and other related activities continue to create the 
platform for our business leaders to engage with 
employees and share their experiences, while also giving 
career coaching and mentoring to younger employees 
within the organization. 

Employee Engagement 
We believe that helping our people find purpose in what 
they do in a work environment that cares about their 
overall state of health creates the positive energy which is 
critical to driving Unilever Nigeria in the desired direction. 
In this regard, we deployed several initiatives to promote 
a highly engaged and productive workforce, also 
inspiring a sense of accountability and ownership. One 
initiative that brought this to light was the well being 
awareness drive tagged "Thrive". This is an initiative 
geared towards the sustenance of personal well being 
and it equipped employees at every level with the right 
information and support specific to their welfare needs to 
cultivate a healthy and balanced lifestyle. 
Also, as part of our drive to foster a productive and 
inspiring environment where everyone has the freedom 
of self-expression through the right words and actions, we 
launched more specific initiatives such as the "Giving 
Voice to Values and lnclusivity" campaign to furnish 
employees with tools and techniques to take action when 
they know what the right thing to do is. The level of 
motivation and commitment this generated was 
gratifying as it brought to life the belief that employees 
can truly make a difference and not look the other way 
when faced with compromising situations. 

Employer Branding 
Our objective to attract the best talent was achieved in 
2016 through series of initiatives including sustained 
partnerships with reputable universities that had us 
hosting student competitions, career talks, seminars etc. 
Worthy of mention was the deployment of our unique 
career enlightening programs tagged "Employability 
Clinic" & "Who wants to be a Unistar" across Nigerian 
Universities. Through these initiatives we were able to 
impact over 2,000 youths across the country with a 
compelling message to keep dreaming and actively 
pursue those dreams. 

This culminated in the 5th Edition of our flagship 
ldeaTrophy Competition for University undergraduates. 
Furthermore the Grand Finale was taken to the next level 
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as it brought together over 500 youths to participate in 
Unilever Youth Employability Fair. These fortunate youths 
had the privilege of receiving free Vetting of CVs, Career 
Counselling, and being inspired by the Chairman of the 
event and keynote speaker Dr. Christopher Kolade 
(former Nigeria High Commissioner to the United 
Kingdom). The competition produced two winners who in 
addition to receiving fantastic prizes represented Nigeria 
at the regional rounds of the Unilever Africa ldeatrophy 
competition in South Africa. 

Our activities and impact in 2016 were substantiated as 
Unilever Nigeria was recognized for the third time in a 
row as No. l Top Employer in Nigeria and Top Employer 
in Africa. Certified for Excellence in Employee Conditions 
by the Top Employer Institute. 

Aswe look forward to an even more successful 2017, our 
thrust is to continuously embed all our people related 
processes and practices towards ensuring Unilever 
Nigeria maintains and enhances the value afforded to 
and derived from our most prized assets - our 
employees. 

Sustainability Report: Making a difference 
for a brighter future - Unilever Sustainable 
Living Plan 

Our strategy for sustainable business 
Unilever has from its origins, been a purpose-driven 
company. Today, our purpose is simple but clear - "to 
make sustainable living commonplace". 
We are living in a world where temperatures are rising, 
water shortages are more frequent, food supplies are 
increasingly scarce and the gap between rich and poor 
increasing. Populations are growing fast, making basic 
hygiene and sanitation a more major challenge. At 
Unilever we can see how people see the world over are 
already affected by these changes. And the changes will 
pose new challenges for us too, as commodity costs 
fluctuate, markets become unstable and raw materials 
harder to source. 
We believe that business must be part of the solution. But 
to be so, business will have to change; it is not 'business as 
usual anymore'. Sustainable equitable growth is the only 

growth is the only acceptable business model. Our 
strategic vision is to double the size of our business while 
reducing our environmental footprint, and increasing our 
positive social impact. 

In 2010, we launched the Unilever Sustainable Living 
Plan, which is our blueprint for sustainable business. We 
will achieve our vision through our Plan; which is helping 
us to decouple our growth from our environmental 
impact while increasing our positive social impact, 
driving profitable growth for our brands, saving costs and 
fueling innovation. 

To achieve our vision for sustainability, we have 3 clear 
goals underwhich are specific activities: 
1. Help people take action to improve their health and 

well-being. 
2. Enhance Livelihoods. 
3. 	Decouple our growth from the environmental 

footprint of our products. 

2016 in review 
Helping People Take Action to improve their health 
and Well-being. 
Uni lever's sustainable living brands are purposely placed 
to address health and well being of Nigerians. Our 
brands have strong social missions which seek to address 
specific development challenges we face in the country in 
this regard. 

In 2016, we had two key areas of intervention: 

1. KnorrForceforGood program: 
In Nigeria, almost one in two women of reproductive age 
and 72% of children under five suffer from anaemia. 50% 
of these cases are caused by a lack of iron in the body 
which is often diet-related. As part of Unilever's 
commitment to sustainable living, the Knorr Force for 
Good program was launched to help reduce the 
prevalence of iron deficiency anaemia in Nigerian 
women and adolescent girls. 

By the year 2020, Unilever aims to reach 20 million direct 
and indirect contacts through the Force For Good 
programme. The success picture for Unilever on the 
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Force for Good programme is to sustainably change the 
behaviour of millions of mothers and teenage girls by 
making nutritious, iron fortified cooking more desirable 
and affordable. 

As at the end of 2016, the Knorr Force for Good program 
reached 75,000 households (including mothers and 
daughters) through a four-week behaviourial change 
program. The activation included visiting schools in rural 
areas where cases of anaemia are prevalent; to educate 
adolescent girls and their mothers on the importance of 
cooking more nutritious meals through the Knorr Green 
Food Steps. The states visited were Nassarawa, Benue, 
Kaduna, Abuja and Kogi. The activity report showed that 
41 %of respondents had started adding leafy vegetables 
to their stew. 

2. Pepsodent schools program: 
Unilever Nigeria aims to tackle the social menace of poor 
oral hygiene and tooth decay. In 2012, we launched the 
Pepsodent Brush Day and Night Oral health campaign 
to improve oral health amongst Nigerians. 

Unilever Nigeria partners with relevant stakeholders in 
the health sector to promote a healthy oral lifestyle for 
Nigerians. The 21 day behavioral change programme 
directly educates and motivates primary school children 
in Government schools on the importance of good oral 
hygiene. By educating the children on the essence of 
brushing day and night, we encourage them to stay 
healthy, happy and lead a more enjoyable and fulfilled 
life. 

Since inception of the Oral Health Schools Programme, 
Unilever has directly reached over 2 .5 million Nigerian 
children in 4,500 Government primary schools with our 
products (Pepsodent and toothbrushes), free educational 
materials and brand instruction ambassadors. 

Further to ensuring good dental care for all Nigerians, 
Unilever signed a Memorandum of Understanding with 
the Federal Government, through the Federal Ministry of 
Health to promote oral hygiene by educating10 million 
Nigerian pupils by 2020. The MoU was signed in 2016 ?t 
the 6th edition of the National Oral Health Week in 

Abuja. 

At the end of 2016, Pepsodent Brush Day & Night 
campaign reached over 1 million pupils with activations 
in 1000 schools within Lagos and Oyo states. 

Enhancing Livelihoods 
Due to the global economic challenges, unemployment 
and poverty have inevitably remained two major issues 
facing individuals today. For Unilever, we are committed 
to contributing to the economic well-being of 
communities, through employment, training and our 
value chain. 

In 2016 we had 2 key areas of intervention: 

1. Creating value along the supply chain: 
The "SHAKTI" (Mbuli, Gbemiga, Tallapi) project is an 
initiative that creates an opportunity for women to 
increase their earnings and improve the quality of their 
lives. Gbemiga registers, trains and provides women in 
rural communities with capital to begin trading Unilever 
products to households and small stores within their 
communities. The project piloted in Oyo, Ogun, Imo and 
Enugu State in 2015, while in 2016, Project Shakti 
expanded to 6 additional states including Nasarrawa, 
Ebonyi, Anambra, Delta, Edo and Benue. As at the end of 
2016, over 1000+ women were empowered in these six 
states. So far, these women have undertaken basic book 
keeping/market working trainings and workshops on 
nutrition. 

2. Customer Development Motorbikes Project: 
In line with our aim of creating value and employment 
along our supply chain, the motorbike project was 
launched as a means of promoting entrepreneurship by 
operationalizing third party sub-distributors across 
Nigeria; through the use of two-wheelers bikes. 

As at quarter 3 of 2016, there were 99 bikes in operation, 
and then in quarter 4 of 2016, over 100 additional bikes 
were deployed. The scheme which is deliberately creating 
employment and distribution channels, to date has a total 
of 250 employees, with the aim of furthering this 
ambition in 2017 and beyond. 
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3. Lipton Push-Cort: 
Tea is the most popular non-alcoholic beverage after 
water, and millions of Nigerians continue to indulge in 
our variety of tea flavours everyday. The Lipton Push-Cart 
has continued to address unemployment challenge, with 
a carefully designed framework that creates third party 
employment opportunities along our supply chain. This 
initiative aims at providing job opportunities to l 000 
push-cart vendors in 2020, while sourcing our tea 
sustainably. 

Halving the Environmental Footprint of our 
Operations 

As a business, we have now moved from the phase of 
discussing the change we need, to actually executing it, 
by cultivating habits that reduce environmental footprint 
such as dealing with packaging that may affect "post­
consumer" waste, review energy and water consumption. 

In 2016, Unilever continued to exhibit best practice 
environmental policies which includes the "zero waste to 
landfill" agenda. Wastes generated from the company's 
factory sites are reused or recycled. Facilities have been 
put in place to measure real time consumption of utilities 
such as water, steam, energy and power, enabling the 
effective monitoring of resources used per unit, to further 
ensure reduction. 

In 2016, Unilever Nigeria awarded a grant to WeCyclers 
(A company that manages the collection and recycling of 
waste) to extend its waste recovery program to more 
communities in Lagos and Ogun State. This is in line with 
the company's commitment to continue to conserve the 
environment, as well as create more job opportunities 
and promote entrepreneurship amongst young 
Nigerians. 

Future Outlook for 2017 
In 2016, Unilever Nigeria held a strategic Unilever 
Sustainable Living Plan (USLP) Workshop in Lagos, to re­
strategize and upscale the existing USLP framework, in 
the context of its relevance to business operations. In 
2017, our business strategy of making sustainable living 
commonplace will be enhanced in Nigeria and is 
founded on four (4) pillars. 

The four pillars include: 
Project Heart driven by Pepsodent, Lifebuoy and Pears, 
which are concerned with improving oral health, hygiene 
and wellbeing of Nigerians. By 2020, the goal is to tackle 
the issue of oral hygiene by encouraging l O million 
Nigerian children, to brush day and night, promote 
proper handwashing habits amongst children before the 
age 5, as well as nourishing and comforting newborns. 

Project new life, driven by powerful food brands: Knorr 
and Blueband; to enhance livelihood of Nigerians 
through sustainable sourcing and provision of everyday 
nutrition, by unlocking flavour and goodness in every 
meal. 

Project Greenland driven by Sunlight, seeks to improve 
waterbodies and hygiene by stimulating proper 
packaging disposal/recycling, and bringing a water 
reducing innovation by 2018. 

Project Reach is driven by Unilever's range of brands 
directed towards the empowerment of women and youth, 
to address unemployment and poverty trends in Nigeria. 
Our target is to use our business model to create 1 million 
job opportunities for Nigerians by 2020. 

Corporate Social Responsibility in 2016 

CSR Naira 

Secondary School Scholarships 10,000,000 

Donation of Products to Schools, 8,786,715 
Charity Homes, etc 

18,786,715 

Safety, Health and Environmental Care 
(SHE) Policy 
In line with our Safety, Health and Environmental care 
(SHE) policy, we remain committed to providing a healthy, 
safe and secure work environment for employees, sub­
contractors and visitors, and to continue to be 
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responsible to the government and people of the 
communities where we operate. Our manufacturing sites 
in Oregun and Agbara have been certified to ISO 14001 
and OHSAS 18001 global Safety, Health and 
Environment Standards, and we submit to regular audits 
to keep up to date. We identify health and safety hazards 
and manage / control risks such that we have recorded 
zero fatal / major injuries in our operations over the last 
10 years; and strive to continue to abhor even minor 
injuries. 

Unilever employs the use of robust management systems 
and continuous improvements, comprising of total 
employee engagements, visible leadership, behavioural 
safety audits, deep compliance audits, safety committees, 
safe travels and logistics safety as examples. We start 
every week with a safety talk on Mondays - across the 
business and continually promote a culture of safety 
awareness with monthly educational campaigns on 
various topics like line ownership, I care culture, 
Environmental awareness, off- the - job safety etc. We 
engage with regulatory agencies like the FRSC to also 
assist to educate our employees and contractors. 

The company continues to implement key Technical 
Standards in Electrical safety, Fire safety, Working At 
Height, Permit To Work, Machines Safety and Risk 
Assessment to continually benchmark ourselves against 
internationally acceptable Standards, towards ensuring 
that our work equipment, processes and facilities are safe 
and secure for all stakeholders. 

We drive a community partnership with other 
manufacturing colleagues to create a platform for 
collaborative emergency preparedness and response. 
We continue to aggressively drive waste reduction, 
recycle and re-use, energy reduction, water consumption 
reduction and rigorous "Zero Non-Hazardous Waste to 
Landfill" initiatives in order to reduce our environmental 
footprints and live up to our Unilever Sustainable Living 
Plan ideals. 

The Health and wellness of our employees is of great 
importance, and we continually land various programs to 
improve health, lifestyle and promote behavioural 
changes. Some of these program includes Preventive 

Medicine through Lamplighter where employees are 
encouraged to carry out comprehensive health checks, 
promotion of mental resilience (using Thrive) . 
Additionally, there are long-standing initiatives including 
quarterly aerobic sessions and the free access to onsite 
gymnasium by our employees. 

Unilever enjoys resolute support of the leadership team, 
whose members head all the safety & health committees, 
and makes the realization of all the SHE programs 
possible. Furthermore, every employee, including 
contractors engaged on our business remains committed 
to the principles of maintaining a healthy, safe and secure 
work environment that will propel us into further 
productivity. 

Quality Policy 
Unilever's reputation is founded on delighting our 
consumers and customers with consistently great product 
quality that meets or exceeds their needs and 
expectations. Our aim is to be the most trusted and 
preferred customer and consumer choice on every 
occasion. Unilever is committed to achieving this goal by 
meeting or exceeding all legal and regulatory 
requirements and through the rigorous application of our 
Quality Management System. Each personal product 
quality experience for our consumers depends upon all 
employees understanding their roles and responsibilities 
and ensuring that they adhere to Unilever's quality 
standards, business processes and regulatory 
requirements at all times. 

Unilever will take prompt and timely action wherever and 
whenever we encounter products which don't meet our 
standards or those required in the marketplace. We will 
continuously improve product quality experiences by 
using the insights gained from our performance 
measures and from consumer and customer feedback. 

This Policy applies to all aspects of product quality 
including safety, design, formulation, raw materials, 
primary/secondary/tertiary packaging, manufacture, 
storage, transport, display, marketing, communication, 
sales and disposal of Unilever products at Unilever, third 
party or business partner facilities. 
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Unilever Nigeria Key Distributors 

Name 

ICOJON INTEGRATED CONSULTANTS LIMITED 

RENUZI VENTURES 

ITURA VENTURES LIMITED 

DE MOSHADEK AND COMPANY NIGERIA 

SUARA & COMPANY 

WORTHY VENTURES LIMITED 

J A ONABOWALE LAGOS 

CANIZ IKOTU N 

SAM AND MARTHA INVESTMENT LIMITED 

OPALINE GLOBAL SERVICES LIMITED 

ADEBOLA DISTRIBUTION ENTERPRISES 

CHRISLANBOLU GENERAL TRADING 

OFAKIA VENTURES 

COVENANT SUCCESS SUPERMARKET 

CANIZ LIMITED 

JODEB ULTIMATES INVESTMENT LTD 

IDUH INTEGRATED SERVICES NIG LTD 

DUPET LIGHT INTERNATIONAL LTD 

IDUH INTEGRATED ABUJA 

J. J NNOLI AND SONS 

OLAYIWOLA GBADAMOSI COMPANY NIGERIA LTD. 

AUB AND SONS INTEGRATED SERVICES 

J. 0 ADEBIYI & SONS NIGERIA LTD 

Region 

Lagos 

Lagos 

Lagos 

Lagos 

Lagos 

Lagos 

Lagos 

Lagos 

Lagos 

Lagos 

Lagos 

Lagos 

Lagos 

Lagos 

Lagos 

Middle Belt 

Middle Belt 

Middle Belt 

Middle Belt 

Middle Belt 

Middle Belt 

Middle Belt 

Middle Belt 
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Name 

IFJANE NIGERIA LIMITED 

KESY DISTRIBUTION AND LOGISTIC LTD 

DOM BEE NIGERIA LIMITED 

DUPET LIGHT INTERNATIONAL LTD MAKURDI 

NAHEEM HEIGHTS LIMITED 

AD BASHARU SONS NIG LTD JALINGO 

SC OKAFOR NIGERIA LIMITED 

BABA GANA MAFON I 

AD BASHARU AND SONS NIG LTD 

AL-BABELLO TRADING COMPANY LTD-KA 

PRIME GENERAL MERCHANTS LIMITED 

TAGMAWASHI RESORT LIMITED 

ALHAJI ABU ZAMAU ENTERPRISES 

AL-BABELLO GASAU 

AL BABELLO TRADING CO. LTD KEBBI 

ALAKASS NIGERIA ENTERPRISES 

ARINOLA PRECIOUS VENTURES 

LASUN DAN MAMA NIGERIA LIMITED 

J A ONABOWALE AND SONS LIMITED 

ALH YARO GOBIRAWA AND SONS LIMITED 

SIDI AND SONS 

AL BABELLO TRADING CO. LTD 

IBOKIES NIGERIA 

Region 

Middle Belt 

Middle Belt 

Middle Belt 

Middle Belt 

North East 

North East 

North East 

North East 

North East 

North West 

North West 

North West 

North West 

North West 

North West 

North West 

North West 

North West 

North West 

North West 

North West 

North West 

South Central 
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Name Region 

CHARLESON INDUSTRIAL SUPPLIES LIMIT 

BLESSED IYKE STORES 

URSULASAM VENTURES 

TIVO CORPORATE SERVICES INT"L LTD SAPELE 

TIVO CORPORATE SERVICES INT"L LTD 

PRENICA AND COMPANY NIGERIA LIMITED 

GLOBALOG ENTERPRISES 

HUMPHREY OKECHUKWU NWOJI ENTERPRISE 

M E UGBOR AND BROTHERS NIG LTD 

STEVE SYLVER NIGERIA LIMITED 

CHUDUAK LIMITED 

RICKAFE SERVICES LIMITED 

SYLIKA GLOBAL RESOURCES ENTERPRISES 

CHARLES AMAN NIGERIA LIMITED 

ELERU BRAND LTD 

GRAB &MUNCH 

ELERU BRAND PORTHARCOURT 

KAIMA INTEGRATED NETWORK VENTURES LTD 

IGWT WORLDWIDE CONCEPT LTD 

B N IGWE AND SONS 

IGWEDIEBUBE NIGERIA LIMITED 

PO KONYEHAAND SONS 

G N CHUKWU AND SONS ENTERPRISES 

South Central 

South Central 

South Central 

South Central 

South Central 

South Central 

South Central 

South Central 

South Central 

South Central 

South Central 

South Central 

South Central 

South Central 

South East 

South East 

South East 

South East 

South East 

South East 

South East 

South East 

South East 
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Name 


ISANGETTE ENTERPRISES 


THEO AND POWELL SERVICES LIMITED 


M O OKORO AND SONS LIMITED 


CY OBIORA NIG ENTERPRISES 


IGBOZULIKE INVESTMENT LIMITED 

DEBBY MEGA MERCHANTS LIMITED 


JOHN BOSCO TRADING COMPANY LTD 


DAVID UTHMAN LTD 


J O ADEGBOYEGA ENTERPRISES 


NEBABS LIMITED 


RS ABIMBOLA NIGERIA ENTERPRISES 


GODS POWER ENTERPRISES 

HASBAR INVESTMENT NIGERIA LIMITED 


DAN SARAT COMPANY NIG LTD 


ESTFRANS VENTURES LIMITED 


HATS INVESTMENT AND PROMOTIONS LIMITED 

Independent auditors 

Region 

South East 

South East 

South East 

South East 

South East 

West 

West 

West 

West 

West 

West 

West 

West 

West 

West 

West 

Messrs KPMG Professional Services, having satisfied the relevant corporate governance rules on tenure in office have 
indicated their willingness to continue in office as auditors to the Company. In accordance with Section 357(2) of the 
Companies and Allied Matters Act (CAP C20) Laws of the Federation of Nigeria, 2004 therefore, the auditors will be re­
appointed at the next annual general meeting of the Companywithout any resolution being passed. 

By order of the Board 

~ 
Mrs. Abidemi Ademola 
Legal Director & Company Secretary 
FRC/2013/NBA/00000001646 

16 March, 2017 
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Statement of Directors' responsibilities for the year 
ended 31 December 2016 
The directors accept responsibility for the preparation of the annual Financial Statements set out on pages 49 to 99 and 
confirm that they give a true and fair view in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and in 
the manner required by the Companies and Allied Matters Act of Nigeria and the Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria 
Act, 2011. 

The directors further accept responsibility for maintaining adequate accounting records as required by the Companies and 
Allied Matters Act of Nigeria and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation 
offinancial statements that are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error. 

The directors have made an assessment of the Company's ability to continue as a going concern and have no reason to 
believe the Company will not remain a going concern in the year ahead. 

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors by: 

His Majesty N A Achebe CFR, mni Yaw Nsarkoh Adesola Sotande-Peters 
Chairman Managing Director Finance Director 

FRC/2013/NIM/00000001568 FRC/20 l 4/IODN/00000007035 FRC/2015/ICAN/00000010834 

16 March, 2017 
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Report of the Audit Committee to the members of 
Unilever Nigeria Pie. 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 359(6) of the Companies and Allied Matters Act (CAP C20) Laws of the 
Federation of Nigeria 2004, the members of the Statutory Audit Committee of Unilever Nigeria Pie. hereby report as 
follows: 

We have exercised our statutory functions under Section 359(6) of the Companies and Allied Matters Act (CAP C20) Laws 
of the Federation of Nigeria, 2004 and we acknowledge the cooperation of management and staff in the conduct of these 
responsibilities. 

We confirm that: 

1. The accounting and reporting policies of the Company are consistent with legal requirements and agreed ethical 
practices. 

2. The internal audit programmes are extensive and provide a satisfactory evaluation of the efficiency of the internal 
control systems. 

3. We have considered the independent auditors' post-audit report in respect of year ended 31 December, 2016 and 
management responses thereon, and are satisfied thereto. 

Members of the Audit Committee are: 

l . Alhaji Waheed Adegbite Chairman & Shareholders' Representative 
2. Mr. Lazarus N Onwuka Shareholders' Representative 
3. Alhaji Wahab A. Ajani Shareholders' Representative 
4. Mrs. Abiola Ala bi Non-Executive Director 
5. Mr. Felix Enwemadu Executive Director 
6. Mr. James Todd Non-Executive Director 

Dated this 15 March, 2017 

~ 

Alhaji Waheed Adegbite 
Chairman 
FRC/2013/ICAN/00000002532 
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lNUEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Shareholders ol Unilever Nigeria Pie 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 
We have audited the financial statements of Unilever Nrgena PLC ('the Company'), which con,prise the 
statement ot tinancial position as at 31 December 2016, the income statement. ti Ie statement of total 
comprehensive income, staternent of changes in equItv and statement of cash !lows for the year then 
ended, a swnrnary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory intorma1ron, as set out on 
pages 49 to 97. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial staternenrs give a true and lair vrew of the financial position of 
Lhe Company as at 31 December, 2016, and o1 its financial performance and Its cash flows for the year 
tl1en ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and in the manner 
required by the Companies and Allied Matters Act, Cap C.20, Laws of the Federal Ion of Nigeria, 2004 
and the Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria Act, 2011 

Sasls for Opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our 
responsibilities uI1der those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit 
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independemt of the Company In ;;lccordance 
will1 the International Ethics Standards Board tor Accountants' Cade of £rh1cs for ProfossionrJI 
Accovntants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements tt1at are relevant to our audir of the 
financial statements in Nigeria and we have fulfilled our other ethlr.al ,esponsibillties i~ a'ccord.ance with 
these requirements a11d the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have 'obtained ls 
suttlcient and appropriate lo provide a basis tor our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters 
Key audit matters a1 e those matters that, in our professional Judgment. were of most significance In our 
alldlt of the financial statements of the currenl period. These matters were addressed in the context of 
our audit of the financial stalernents as a whole. and In forming our opinion thereon, and we do not 
provide a seµarate opinion on these matters. 

a. Revenue Recognition 

Reier to Significant accounting policies (Nots 1 20) and Revenue (Note 4) on r,ages 64 and 71 
respectively of the t,nanc,al statements. 

The key audit matter 

Revenue is the most significant Income stalemeI11 
accoltnt and lmpacts majority of the key 
parformance indicators on whid11he Company and 
its directors are assessed. Its significance makes 
revenue a mailer of foca..1s in our audit. 

How the matter was addressed in out audit 

Our audit procedures in this area included among 
others: 
. We evaluated the design and 

implemer11ation and the operating 
0tt0c1iveness of key automatatl arid rnanual 
internal controls over the quantity and unrt 
prices of goods sold and the approval of 
invoices. We Involved our own specialists t0 
assist with evaluating the kef auto.mated 
access controL over the approval of Invoices 
on the Company's SAP Enterpr ise Resowc,e 
Planning (ERP) sys1em. 

I.IMu 1·,a1t11loht1I S..,11i1L.,1. ill / •rJ1>i,i'llt1,p fl'I\IIUl ,JJI U l.jf1U1r ~,mo~ 
N11,011.. ltil-4 11 ,, ,,irn1, ul ~PMG 1111,1,1",h.11 "' c~Dt11.11.1 
I ilPM(] lfll•Hl•llilr..a! I 411).I~ ""!lft II 1!lJhft f• 1111 "t,111'" f f:11u l• "rt•l,,111 0 [ 11 '''tfllli J11-.w1,1,11G EJ..rhlt""H AlllllQt.l f .\.j"llltff'I 

l\d....,olo !. ~")I ~Ibo/• 0. Olo,,,ol, rli\C'.!Nlr I'\ !i"1'•l'1 t,\tudol• ti 011111~ 1 
,.,_,, ~ 81tht1•n C1,11:.11cy I·' Anya,•11101 ::J:i(/l\;L1 [!.[.1'4j 

Jocapl, Q tagb"' ir..tbq Q Oli!J'1•P!JJ ,~a11•r1"r'!KI M 1111"' 
01il.1ltrt•P I Sll!•11Li!'l1n OL1W I 1.i,1 iff Ot.1rf'IW, I.J O•HJinl ~ 
(N.,i~l,,rr,1 CJ Aw,-1tD4,11 0' ..,. , h • Cil~ I r'l'11m1~U I Oil111 111 ••111 Vi "'tJ C,1~11~1 
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a. Revenue Recognition (continued) 

Refer lo Significant accounting policies (Note l 20) and R0ven11e (Note 4) on pago:3:,. 64 and 71 
respectively oi the financial :narements. 

How the matter was addressed in our audit 
(continued) 

The key audit matter (continued) 

- We dF.Lermlned Lh0 expected quantity sold 
during tl1e year using thr-- ope11ing stock 
balance, units prodL,ceti <lunnq th~ year and 
clos111y Slm:k The expecterl q11am1ty s010 
was mul11phetJ by approved utiit pr1c,:,~ ro 
determ1nr• ti ,1:: e;.pected rnve,we. Tl ,c 

expectat1ot1 wab compa ~ci w,ct, tl1e a,nr,. ,, 
recorded In tl~e Company's gent::lral ledger. 

- We pertom1ed :'111 analysis of thei r,,omntv 
1evenue tre:nd over the last twu Vt:'.:Hs, 
checked for significant fluctuat1cr1:--d11d 
obtained explanations for such lhJctuatrons 

- W e compared 0n a "idn1ple ba~1s. 1t1r­
quantity of sale" =md ,J ,,• price-:, n II IP 

sys1ern TO th1;; dCJprollcd m,Oll l· ~­

ackriuWlt::cJged b\ C:!l'>ll1fl18rs 1/Vf- also 
recomputed accruAI!> 101 rebates a11d sales 

discount using approved percentages and 
compared With amount recorded in the 
Company's ger,eral ledger , 

• 	 We assessed ~he accuracy ol 21 sample oi 
manual journal envies n=ila11ng tu revenue bv 
checking them to supporting di ,c;un,entat1on 
s1 1r:h as apprnV1;?d l..fedit notes to c:usto1N"!1 ~ 

wi1h respect 111 e;al~s reiurns cir rebate~ 

We performed cu t-<)tf procedLJ1es by 
checking rhaL revenue transactions occurring 
prior to, and imrneC'iiately after tho year end 
dale were recognised In the correct period 



b, Valuation of employee be11efits 

Refer to cr1t1ca l accounting cst,rmites ,rnd Judgrnenr !Note 3(i) and Retirement benefit arid long serv1cs 
awa1 d obligations (Note 21) on Pages 70 arid 8.5 to 89 respectively of the financtal staternents. 

The key audit matter 

Sigrliflca111 Judgment is involved In ti,A valuation uf 
employee benefl1 obligalions. The valuatirn1 Is 
based on cert;;iin r.3ssurnptions and estimates 
which aro highly sublective. Th~se assumptions 
include among 01hers, discounl rate, salary 
lnrrease rate, dcmogr,1phi c- parameters and 
ir,11,tlion rare . 

Chai1ge.s in assumptmns and estimates used to 
measure 1l1e employee benefit obligauons may 
have a sigr,i1ir:ant effect on tl10 an10LJt1t 
recognized In 1he l1r1anclal statements. 

How the matter was addressed in our audit 

We performed the following procedures among 
atl1ers· 
- We obtained the actuari,1I valuation report 

prepared by tho axte1 nal actua1 ,al expert who 
worked tor the company 011 a sarnple basis. 
we corn pared the underlying n 1ernhersl lip 
data used In the valuation repor l to ti 1e 
human resources documentation for 
consls1oncv. 

- hI addition, we challenyed Lhe key 
assumptions applied in tl1e valuaticin bv 
compa1ing the assumptions to our 
expecra11ons based on knowledge ot the 
Company, industry experience, relev;int 
rri;irket parameters and other externally 
derived data. 

The Company accrues for goods and services 
received without Invoices based on d11ectors' 
best estimate of the value of such goc)ds and 
services. These accruals are later adjusted to the 
actual liability when the actual invoicFs are 
1ecelved or reconclllat1ons are parfo(med based 
on confirmation from relevant vendors. 

Tho I t:Jce1pt of the involcos/cnnf11 niatlons from 
vendors were sometimes delayed such that the 
est1matos were retained for rno1e than one 
financial year. 

In the curren1 year, the Company rec-elv~ci 
confirmation from the vendors of the outstanding 
amounts and 1h1s necessitated a reasse:..srnent of 
the accruals by the drrectors. Accordingly, an 
amount of N898 mi ll ion was written back to 
income. Tl1is write back of accruals related ma111ly 
to cuslom duties, freight ct1arges and rnark011no 
expenses 

The accruals ate c;o11s1dered an area of 
significance to 11,e audit due to the judgment 
1rwolved in rnak111y l11ess estimates and the 
quantum of I hA amount wrrtten back i11 Ihe 
cu, rent year 

c. Reversal of excess accrual 
Refo1 to critica l accounting estimates and Judgment (Note 3(1v) and expenses by natLJre (Note 5(bl) on 
pages 71 a11d 74 respectively o11he financial statemems 

How the matter was addressed in our audit The key audit matter 

Ou, aLJdit procedures in this area included the 
iollow111g 

. Discussions with thei dtteclors to understand 
!he assumptions mac.le tn estimating tho 
acc1 tied amoums. Wo challenged the 
assL1111pt1ons of the d1t0ctor5 by comparing 
the assurr1p1lons to our expectarions based 
on 111dus1ry experience and knPwledge of the 
Company. 

- We also evaluated the appropriateness of tl1P. 
reversals by obtaining confirmat1ons 1ron1 ihf:l 
third parties and chei~kir,g that the accri1<1ls . 
reversed ware no longtir required 

We also assessed the adequacy of the 
accruals at the reporting date by agreemg the 
accrued ~mounts to invoices received 
subsequent to year end. 

- Where invoices wero vet to be rece1vecl 101 
gocirl!. received and/01 services rendered. w,, 
agreed the relevam accrual lo tile basis of 
estimate such as purchase 01 de, and 
evtdenCB ot del1verv of goorls w services 



Other Information 
The directors are rssponsiblC:1 for tho tither 1ntorn1atlon The other lnfonw111on wmprlses the Unlh;)ve1 
m1ss1on i:ilaternent, Unilever val11es, Cornpany profile, Board o1 d11e1;10rs. officer and other co1nnr,"lte 
1ntormatron, Res11its at a glance, Notice to the annual general meeting, Bm:1rrl profile. Report of lhf 

directors, Stotern~nt of Directors' respons1hi11t1es, Circular to sha1eholde1<s Repon of the Aud1l 
Committee and Otl1er national disclosures (h111 rJoes not include the financial statemems and ow 
auditor's report thereon), which we obtained prior 10 the date ol this aurlita, 's repofl.. 11 also includes 
financial and non-f ,nancial information such as ltle Chairman's StaterTlent, shareholders' information, 
amongst others (together "Outstanding reports "). which are expected lo be made available to us afte, 
that dale. 

Our opinion on the t1nancial statement:s doe~ rint cover the other niforrnauon and we do n<1I express any 
form of assurunce i.:onclusion thereon, 

In connection w11h our audit ot the financial stalc-;menrs, our responsihrl11y 1s 10 read the other 1nfo1111il111111 
ar,d in doing so, conside, whether the other 1ntormat1on Is materially lncorns15tenr with the timmc1al 
slalements or our knowledge obtained ,n th0 a11dit or otherwise appea, s to be mate11ally rn isst,neid II, 
based on the work we have pertonned, we conclude that there 1s a material r111sstatemem of this oll,l;jr 
irilo1matlun, we are required to report that tact, We-have nothing to repDfl 1n this regard. 

When we 1ead the Outstanding reports, 1f we conclude that there is a matom1I tn1ssra1ement therein, Wr:< 
are required lo communicate the matter to the Audit Comn11ttee. 

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Anancial Statements 
Thfl Directors are responsible for the preparatio11 ot financial statements that give a true antf 1<111 view 1n 
acc:ottla11ce with IFRSs a11d in the manner required by the Companies and Allied Matters Act, Cap C..20, 
Li'!WS of 1l1e Federatio11 of N1gerra, 2004 Nigeria and rhe F1nanc1al Reporting Couricil ot Nigeria Act, 2011 
and f01 such Internal control as the Directors determine 1s necessary to enable the preparation of financial 
staterner,ts that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraL1d or error. 

In preparing the tinanciaf striternents, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Company's ability to 
coritinue as a going concern, dis.clos1rig, as appllcable, matters related to going concern and using the 
going concet n uasls of accouriti11r1 unless the Drrectors either intend 10 liQLfldate rhe Company or Ill 
cease opera1lons, or has no realistic al1ern1rnve but to do so. 

AuditQr's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Fintmcial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtmn rea:;onable assurance abou1 whether the f111ar1c1al statements as a whole a,e 
free from trnnerial misstatement, whether due to l1a~1d or error, and 10 1ss11e an auditor's reron 1hal 
Includes ou1 opir1io11_ Reasonable assura11ce ,s a high level ot assurance, but 1:s not a guarantee 1hat an 
audit conducted in accordance w11h ISAs will always detect a materml misstalernenf Wl10n 11 e ri-;1:; 
Misstatements 1:a11 arise from fraud m e1ror and are considered material 11. md1v1dually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to Influence the econarn1c decisions of users laken on the 
basis of these li11a11c1al statements, 
As part of an aud[l in ~wc.;ordance with !SA:., we exercise proless1onal judgm0111 and maintain prolessw11al 
skepticlsrn th1 oughout the audir. We also. 
• 	 ldenti-fy and assess the risks of material mlsstatemen1 ol t11e r1nanc1al statements, whether due 10 

friiud or error, design and periorm al ,dlt procedures respor1s1ve to (hose risk~~. and obtain audit 
evidence that Is s11flictem and apprupnate to provide a basis for our op1n10,1 The 11sk of not dot8Cllno 
o rrititerial m1sstatemeni rP,s11lrl11g tram frau l 1s higher than lor otie 1esult1ng fro1t1 error, as fraud m,1v 
involve col lusion, torgo1y, 1111ent1onal om1s!;luns, rnisrepresentatlw1s, or the ow11 Ide ol internal 
,~nntrol. 



• 	 Obtain an understanding at internal control relevant ta the audit In order to design ElJJdl1 procedures 
That are appropriate in tM r,lrcu111stanl:Os, but nol for the pL11pos0 o1 expressing an opinion nn th, 1 

e1fectlveness of the Company's internal control. 
• 	 Eval11ate the app1opria1eness ot accounting pal1c1es used and the reasonableness ol accounting 

esumates and related disclosures mllde by the Direr.tors. 
• 	 Concluue on the dppropriateness ol Directors' use of the going t:.011ce,n basis ol accounting ,;111d, 

basf;ld on the audil evidence ohlalnetl, whether a rnaterial uncertainty exists ,elated to ev0nts nr 
,:ondlt1ons that may cast s1gni1icant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a qolng wncern It 
we concli 1da th;:i1 "mciten~I (lnCerta1nty exists we ,m110q111rad 111 dr1:1w a11ent1on in aw a11ditor's. 
report to the related disclosures In the financial statements 01. 1f such disclosures are Inadequate, to 
rnrnJl ry ou, llpinlnn. DLH (X>r1cll1siot1s a1t'J b,H;:;1,iu 011 lltl~ ;,iudil c:iviucmce t>bt11i11a1J l1p ro ll\l·l dill(~ uf out 
auditor's report. However, future events or cond1t1ons n1ay cause the Company to cease to continue 
as a goi11g concern. 

• 	 Evaluate 1hrc, ovArall presentation, ~1ruc1L1rA ancJ~ont(:lnt of tl1B linanclal statements, inclurllng the 
d1sclosu1es. and whetller l11e linancial staten1e11ts represent tl1e u11deily1ng tra11sact1ons and eve111s 
in a n1anm~1 that acl,kwe$ fair pr0sc-mtalion, 

We com111un1c;a1e wil11 lhr;J Audit Cornm1Ht~e regarding, amony olhe1111cHlors, L!ie planned scope a11d 
timing ot the audit and s1gni11cant audit f111d1ngs, 1nclud1ng any s1}1111t1cant def1cienc1es 111 internal conrrol 
1h'1l wo 1de11 t1ly dunn~i our audit 

We illso provide tl1fJAudit Con1tnlll0C'J wit t1 a statement tt1at WH l,avo complied w,tli relevant ml1ic<1I 
requ1remems regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other marters 
111at n,ay ,easanably be thought to tlear on our u1deµe,1de11ce amJ where applicable, 1!:11;,itml ~,ir,~y1mrch.. 

From the matters commurncated with the Aud11 Committee, we dete1rn111e those matters thr1t were of 
most s1gniflcanc0 iri lhe audit of lh0 financial statements of tha current period and are therefore the key 
audit matters. We describe t hese matters In our auditor's report unless law or regulation prech.Jcies public 
tlisclo~ure about the rna ner d r when, in extren1AIY rar(.:i circ11rnstant:~s. we d0termi11e tlwt a rnat1er 
should not be cornmunicated 1n our report because the adverse consequences of clomg so would 
reasonably be expecled Lo outwe1gl1 the public i11te1esr l>f111efils of such co1111,n1nica1ior1 , 

Report on Other legal and Regulatory Requirements 
Comp/Janee With rhe reqwrements of Schedule 6 of the Corr,pan1es and A//ierl MaUfHs Acl CarJ c.2n, 
Laws ot the F&derarion of Nigeria, 200d 
In our opinion proper books of account have been k.ept by the Company so far as appears 1rom our 
exarnl11a tio11 of those books and the Cornpany's St<lternant t,f imancial position and statsrn«,ini of profit or 
loss and rnher comprel1ensive income c1re in agreement With the books of account, 

.,.-~ ~ Signad: ./i--z;;.--A,1 •· 
C c(5l"'t'l. e ,,/' 

Guodluck C. Obi, FCr/. 
FRC/20 l 2/ICAN/00000000442 
For: KPMG Proressional Serviu~s 

Chartered Account3nts 
20 March 2017 
LBgos, Nigeria 
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U~w 

Income Statement 
For the year ended 31 December 

2016 2015 
Note N'000 N'000 

Revenue 4 69,777,061 59,221 ,748 
Cost of sales 5 (49,481,020) (38,174,248) 

Gross profit 20,296,041 21,047,500 

Selling and distribution expenses 5 (3,151,087) (2,844,098) 

Marketing and administrative expenses 5,9 (11,464,146) (13,641,218) 

Other income 6 124,237 77,506 

Operating profit 5,805,045 4,639,690 

Finance income 10 1,027,622 301,889 
Finance cost 11 (2,726,245) (3,170,516) 

Profit before taxation 4,106,422 1,771,063 

Taxation 12 (1 ,034,537) (578,697) 

Profit for the year 3,071,885 1,192,366 

Attributable to: 
Equity holders 3,071,885 l , 192,366 

Earnings per share for profit attributable to equity holders: 
Basic and diluted earnings per share (Naira) 13 0.81 0.32 

The notes on pages 55 to 97 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Statement of Total Comprehensive Income 
For the year ended 31 December 

Note 

Profit for the year 

Items that will not be reclassified to income statement: 
Remeasurement on post employment benefit obligations 21 (vi) 

Tax effect 12 

Total comprehensive income 

Attributable to: 
Equity holders 

The notes on pages 55 to 97 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

2016 
N'000 

3,071,885 

1,092,263 

(349,524) 

3,814,624 

3,814,624 

2015 
N'000 

1,192,366 

(614,291) 

184,287 

762,362 


762,362 
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U~w 

Statement of Financial Position 
As at 31 December 

31 31 
December December 

Note 2016 2015 
N'000 N'000 

Assets 
Non-current assets 
Property, plant and equipment 14(i) 29,272,186 27,368,919 

Intangible assets 15 940,124 1,168,581 

Other non- current assets 30 140,160 208,809 

Employee loan receivable 31 111,671 127,979 

Retirement benefit surplus 21 (V) 484,621 290,382 
30,948,762 29,164,670 

Current assets 
Assets held for sale 32 171,411 171,411 
Inventories 16 9,878,499 6,173,113 
Trade and other receivables 17 18,945,578 10,142,845 

Employee loan receivable 31 72,918 85,201 
Cash and bank balances 18 12,474,141 4,435,244 

41,542,547 21,007,814 

Total assets 72,491,309 50,172,484 

Liabilities 
Current liabilities 
Trade and other payables 19 32,476,502 22,542,842 
Income tax 12 502,855 159,840 

Bank overdrafts 18 4,535,672 

Loans and borrowings 26 20,501,276 7,426,543 
Deferred income 27 32,756 32,756 

53,513,389 34,697,653 
Non-current liabilities 
Deferred tax liabilities 20 3,942,337 3,060,591 
Unfunded retirement benefit obligations 21 (iv) 2,613,268 3,369,353 

Long service award obligations 21 (iv) 181,166 266,548 

Other employee benefits 28 74,150 88,494 

Deferred income 27 62,781 95,537 
Loans and borrowings 26 414,275 591,055 

7,287,977 7,471,578 
Total liabilities 60,801,366 42,169,231 
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Statement of Financial Position {continued) 

As at 31 December 

Note 

31 
December 

2016 
N'000 

31 
December 

2015 
N'000 

Equity 
Ordinary share capital 

Share premium 

Retained earnings 

Total equity 

29 

29 

1,891,649 

45,717 

9,752,577 

11.689.943 

1,891,649 

45,717 

6,065,887 

8.003.253 

Total equity and liabilities 72,491,309 50,172,484 

The financial statements on pages 49 to 99 were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 16 March 2017 and 
signed on its behalf by: 

His Majesty N A Achebe CFR, mni Yaw Nsarkoh Adesola Sotande-Peters 
Chairman Managing Director Finance Director 

FRC/2013/NIM/00000001568 FRC/20 l 4/IODN/00000007035 FRC/2015/ICAN/00000010834 

The notes on pages 55 to 97 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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U~w 

Statement of Changes in Equity 
Year ended 31 December 2016 

Share Share Retained 
capital premium earnings Total 
N'OOO N'OOO N'OOO N'OOO 

Balance at 1 January 2015 1,891,649 45,717 5,541,442 7,478,808 

Total comprehensive income for the year 

Profit of the year l,192,366 1,192,366 

Other comprehensive income 
Remeasurement on post employment benefit obligations, 
net of tax (430,004) (430,004) 

762,362 762,362 

Transactions with owners 
Dividend declared (378,330) (378,330) 
Statute barred dividend 140,413 140,413 

(237,917) (237,917) 

At 31 December 2015 1,891,649 45,717 6,065,887 8,003,253 

Balance at 1 January 2016 1,891,649 45,717 6,065,887 8,003,253 

Total comprehensive income for the year 

Profit for the year 3,071,885 3,071,885 

Other comprehensive income 
Remeasurement on post employment benefit obligations, 
net of tax 742,739 742,739 

3,814,624 3,814,624 

Transactions with owners 
Dividend declared (189,165) (189,165) 

Statute barred dividend 61,231 61,231 

At 31 December 2016 1,891,649 45,717 9,752,577 11,689,943 

The notes on pages 55 to 97 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

UNILEVER NIGERIA PLC -Annual Report & Financial Statements 



Statement of Cash Flows 

Year ended 31 December 


Note 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Cash generated from operations 

Retirement benefits paid 

Long service award obligations paid 

Tax paid 

23 

21 (iv) 

21 (iv) 

l 2(ii) 

Net cash flow generated from operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Interest received 
Purchase of intangible assets 

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 

10 
15 

14(i) 

Net cash used in investing activities 

Cash flows from financing activities 
Drawdown of long-term loan 26(iii) 

Repayment of long-term loan 26(iii), 26(iv) 


Drawdown of short-term loan 26(ii) 


Interest paid 


Dividend paid 


Net cash flow generated from /(used in) 
financing activities 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 18 

The notes on pages 55 to 97 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

2016 
N'000 

6,734,269 

(567,002) 

(17,461) 

(159,300) 

5,990,506 

333,174 
(5,488) 

(4,228,146) 
16,967 

(3,883,493) 

(427,145) 

15,491,446 

(2,410,357) 

(186,388) 

12,467,556 

14,574,569 

(7,100,428) 

7,474,141 

2015 
N'000 

16,372,963 

(529,948) 

(13,079) 

(239,989) 

15,589,947 

301,889 
(4,027) 

(5,068,498) 
86,094 

(4,684,542) 

15,000 

(440,738) 

(2,983,286) 

(378,330) 

(3,787,354) 

7,118,051 

(14,218,479) 

(7,100,428) 
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Notes to the financial statements 

1. Summary of significant accounting policies 

1.1 Basis of preparation 

The financial statements of Unilever Nigeria Pie ("Unilever" or "the Company") have been prepared in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board. The 
financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the fair value measurement 
of available-for-sale financial assets, inventories measured at lower of cost or net realisable value, loans and borrowings 
carried at fair value. liabilities for cash-settled shared-based payment and the liability for defined benefit obligations which 
is recognized as the present value of the defined benefit obligation less the total of the plan assets, and adjusted for 
actuarial gains, past service cost and actuarial losses. The plan assets for defined benefit obligations are also measured at 
fair value. The financial statements are presented in Nigerian Naira, rounded to the nearest thousand (N'000) unless 
otherwise indicated. 

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgements, estimates 
and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income 
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that 
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results ofwhich form the basis of making the judgements about 
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from 
these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected. 

1.1 .1 Going concern 
Nothing has come to the attention of the directors to indicate that Unilever will not remain a going concern for at least 
twelve months from the date of approval of these financial statements. 

1.2 Amended accounting standards adopted 
The following standard has been adopted by the Company for the first time for the financial year beginning on or after 1 
January 2016: 

i. IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements - amendment on disclosure initiative 
ii. Clarification of acceptable methods of depreciation and amortisation (Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38) 

iii . IAS 19 Employee Benefits- amendment in classification 
iv. IFRS 5 Non-currentAssets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations - amendments on held for distribution 

1.3 New accounting standards issued but not yet adopted 
The following new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations have been issued, but are not effective for the 
financial year ended 31 December 2016 and have not been early adopted: 

i . Amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows (Disclosure Initiative) 
The amendments provide for disclosures that enable users offinancial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising 
from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flow and non-cash changes. This inlcudes providing a 
reconciliation between the opening and closing balances arising from financing activities. The amendment becomes 
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017. 
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Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

1.3 New accounting standards issued but not yet adopted (continued) 
ii. Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes (Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses) 
The amendments provide additional guidance on the existence of deductible temporary differences, which depend solely 
on a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset and its tax base at the end of the reporting period, and is not affected 
by possible future changes in the carrying amount or expected manner of recovery of the asset. The amendment becomes 
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017. 

iii. IFRS 9 Financial Instruments 
IFRS 9 was issued as a complete standard including the requirements previously issued and the additional amendments to 
introduce a new expected loss impairment model and limited changes to the classification and measurement requirements 
for financial assets. The amendment becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. 

iv. IFRS 1 5 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 
IFRS 15 provides a single, principles based five-step model to be applied to all contracts with customers. Guidance is 
provided on topics such as the point in which revenue is recognised, accounting for variable consideration, costs of 
fulfilling and obtaining a contract and various related matters. The amendment becomes effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2018. 

v. IFRS 16 Leases 
IFRS 16 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both parties to a 
contract, ie the customer ('lessee') and the supplier ('lessor'). IFRS 16 is effective from 1 January 2019 and replaces the 
previous leases Standard, IAS 1 7 Leases, and related Interpretations. 

vi. Amendments to IFRS 2 -Share Based Payment (Classification and measurement of share based payment transactions) 
The amendments cover three accounting areas; measurement of cash-settled share-based payments, classification of 
share-based payments settled net of tax withholdings, and accounting for a modification of a share-based payment from 
cash-settled to equity-settled. The amendment becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2018. 

vii. IFRIC 22 - Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration 
The amendments provide guidance on the transaction date to be used in determining the exchange rate for translation of 
foreign currency transactions involving an advance payment or receipt. The amendment becomes effective for annual 
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. 

The Company is yet to assess the impact of all accounting standards issued but not yet adopted. 

1.4 Segment reporting 

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating 
decision maker. The chief operating decision maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing 
performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the Leadership Team of Unilever, comprising of the 
executive directors and other key management personnel. 
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Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

1.5 Foreign currency translation 

i . Functional and presentation currency 
Items included in the financial statements of Unilever are measured using the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which the entity operates ('the functional currency') . The financial statements are presented in Nigerian 
Naira, rounded to the nearest thousand, which is Unilever's functional and presentation currency. 

ii. Transactions and balances 
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of 
the transactions or valuations where items are re-measured. 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of 
exchange at the reporting date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of foreign currency 
transactions, and from translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the entity's 
functional currency at year end exchange rates, are recognized in the income statement. 

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange 
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated 
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non­
monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of gain or loss on change in fair value of the 
item. 

1.6 Property, plant and equipment 

i. Recognition and measurement 
All property, plant and equipment are stated in the statement of financial position at cost less accumulated depreciation 
and any accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the 
asset. When significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for 
as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. 

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined by comparing the proceeds from 
disposal with the carrying amount of the item of property, plant and equipment and are recognized net within other income 
in profit or loss. 

ii. Subsequentcosts 
Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when 
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can 
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are 
charged to the income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred. 
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Notes to the financial statements (continued} 


1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

1.6 Property, plant and equipment (continued) 

iii. Depreciation 

The estimated depreciation rates of property, plant and equipment for current and comparative periods are as follows: 


Leasehold land Nil (2015: Over the lease term) 
Buildings 2.5% 
Plant and machinery 7% 
Furniture and equipment 7-25% 
Motorvehicles 25% 

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual values 
using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives and is generally recognized in profit or loss. 

The capital work-in-progress represents buildings under construction and machinery yet to be installed. It is stated at cost 
and not depreciated. Depreciation on capital work-in-progress commences when the assets are ready for their intended 
use. 

Depreciation method, assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each 
reporting period. 

Where an indication of impairment exists, an asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable 
amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than it's estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the 
higherofan asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use. 

iv. De-recognition 
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected 
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net 
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the year the asset is de-recognised. 

1.7 Intangible assets 

Computer software 

Costs associated with maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred. 

Development costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and unique software products 

controlled by Unilever are recognised as intangible assets when the following criteria are met: 


-it is technically and commercially feasible to complete the software product so that itwill be available for use; 

-management intends to complete the software product and use o r sell it; 

-there is an ability to use or sell the software product; 

-it can be demonstrated how the software product will generate probable future economic benefits; 

-adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development of the software product are available; 

and 

-the expenditure attributable to the software product during its development can be reliably measured. 


UNILEVER NIGERIA PLC - Annual Report &Financial Statements 



Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
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1. 7 Intangible assets (continued) 

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of the software product include the software development employee 
costs and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads. 

Other development expenditures that do not meet these criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred. Development 
costs previously recognised as an expense are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period. 

Computer software development costs recognised as assets are amortised on a straight line basis in the income statement 
over their estimated useful lives, which does not exceed eight and a half years. These costs are measured at cost less 
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. 

Amortisation method, assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each 
reporting period. 

1.8 Assets held for sale 

Non-current assets and groups of assets and liabilities which comprise disposal groups, are classified as 'held for sale' 
when it is highly probable that they will be recovered primarily through sale rather than through continuing use. The 
following criteria are assessed: 

-a decision has been made to sell; 

-the assets are available for sale immediately; 

-the assets are being actively marketed; 

-a sale has been agreed or is expected to be concluded within twelve months ofthe balance sheet date. 


Immediately prior to classification as held for sale, the assets or groups of assets are remeasured in accordance with 
Uni lever's accounting policies. Subsequently, assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale are valued at the lower 
of book value or fair value less disposal costs. Assets held for sale are not depreciated. 

1.9 Impairment of non-financial assets 
An impairment loss is recognised for non-financial assets when the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds 
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For 
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable 
cash flows (cash-generating units) . Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of 
the impairment at each reporting date. 

Intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment annually. Impairment losses are recognized in the 
income statement. All other assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period. 

1.10 Financial instruments 
Financial instruments (i.e. financial assets and liabilities) are recognized when Unilever becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets have 
expired or have been transferred and Unilever has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Financial 
liabilities are derecognized when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. 

UNILEVER NIGERIA PLC -Annual Report & Financial Statements 



Notes to the financial statements (continued) 


1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

1.10 Financial instruments (continued) 

1. 10. 1 Classification 
Management determines the classification of its financial instruments at initial recognition. 

i. Loans and receivables 

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an 

active market. They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than twelve months after the end of the 

reporting period . These are classified as non-current assets. Unilever's loans and receivables comprise trade receivables, 

employee loan receivables and other receivables in the statement offinancial position. 


ii. Financial liabilities at amortized cost 

Financial liabilities at amortized cost include trade payables, bank debt and other long-term debts. 


1. 10.2 Measurement 
i. Loans and receivables 
Loans and receivables are initially recognized at fair value. Transaction costs are added to the fair value of the financial 
asset on initial recognition. Subsequently, loans and receivables are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest 
method less an allowance for impairment. 

ii. Financial liabilities at amortized cost 
Trade payables are initially recognized at fair value less any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequently, trade 
payables are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Bank debt and long-term debt are 
recognized initially at fair value, net of any transaction costs incurred, and subsequently at amortized cost using the 
effective interest method. These are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within twelve months. Otherwise, they 
are presented as non-current liabilities. 

1.11 Offsetting financial instruments 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position when 
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or 
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

1.12 Impairment of financial assets 
Assets carried at amortised cost 

Unilever assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of 

financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred 

only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition 

of the asset (a 'loss event') and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial 

asset or group offinancial assets that can be reliably estimated. 


The criteria that Unilever uses to determine that there is objective evidence ofan impairment loss include the following : 

-significant financial d ifficulty ofthe issuer or obligor; 

-a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; 
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1.12 Impairment of financial assets (continued) 
-Unilever, for economic or legal reasons relating to the borrower's financial difficulty, granting to the borrower a 
concession that the lenderwould not otherwise consider; 
-it becomes probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or otherfinancial reorganisation; 
-the disappearance of an active marketforthatfinancial asset because offinancial difficulties; or 
-observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a portfolio of 
financial assets since the initial recognition of those assets, although the decrease cannot yet be identified with the 
individual financial assets in the portfolio, including: 

(i) adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers in the portfolio; and 
(ii) national or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on the assets in the portfolio. 

Unilever first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists. 

1.13 Fair value measurement 
Unilever measures financial instruments at fair value at each reporting date. Also, fair values of financial instruments 
measured at amortised cost are disclosed in Note 24. 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the 
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

-In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
-In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the 
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as 
a whole: 

-Level 1 -Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
-Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly 
or indirectly observable 
-Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is 
unobservable 

1.14 Inventories 
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and estimated net realisable value. Cost is based on standard costing that 
comprises direct materials and where applicable, directs labour costs and those overheads that have been incurred in 
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost of raw materials, work in progress and finished 
goods are stated at standard cost while that of engineering spares and other items of inventories is calculated using the 
weighted average method. Standard cost is reviewed periodically to ensure they consistently approximate historical cost. 
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs of completion and costs to be incurred in 
marketing, selling and distribution. 
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1.15 Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows include cash at bank and in hand plus short-term deposits less 
overdrafts and short-term working capital loans. Short-term deposits have a maturity of three months or less from the date 
of acquisition, are readily convertible to cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. Bank overdrafts are 
repayable on demand and form an integral part of Unilever's cash management. 

1 . 1 6 Borrowings 
Interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafts are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Finance 
charges, including premiums payable on settlement or redemption and direct issue costs, are accounted for on an 
amortised cost basis through the income statement using the effective interest method and are added to the carrying 
amount of the instrument to the extent they are not settled in the period in which they arise. 

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are 
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. 

l . l 7 Provisions 
Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the 
present obligation at the reporting date. The discount rate used to determine the present value reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the 
passage of time is recognised as finance cost. 

Provisions are recognised when Unilever has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, and it is 
probable that Unilever will be required to settle that obligation and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions for 
restructuring costs are recognised when Unilever has a detailed formal plan for the restructuring that has been 
communicated to affected parties. Provisions are not recognised forfuture operating losses. 

1.18 Income tax 
The tax for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent 
that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case the tax is recognised in 
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively. 

i. Current income tax 
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year and any adjustment to tax payable or receivable in respect 
of previous years. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the income statement because it excludes items of 
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or 
deductible. Unilever's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted 
atthe reporting date. 

ii . Deferred income tax 
Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is 
accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable 
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be 
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1.18 Income tax (continued) 
available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if 
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other 
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit. 

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against 
which the asset can be utilised. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced 
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be 
recovered. Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or 
the asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to the income statement, except when it relates to items charged or 
credited to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealtwith in equity. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against 
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and Unilever intends to 
settle its current tax liabilities on a net basis. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are presented as non-current in the statement offinancial position. 

1.19 Employee benefits 
(a) Post-employment benefit plans 
Unilever operates a defined contribution benefit scheme, an unfunded defined benefit service gratuity scheme for its 
employees; and other post-employment benefit plans. 

i. Defined contribution scheme 
Unilever operates a defined contribution plan in line with the Pension Reform Act 2014. The contributions are recognised 
as employee benefit expenses when they are due. Unilever has no further payment obligation once the contributions have 
been paid. The contribution made towards securing the future benefits in the scheme is as follows: 

Management staff Non-management staff 
Employer 10% 16% 
Employee 8% 10% 

ii. Defined benefit plans 
Unilever also operates both an unfunded defined benefit service gratuity scheme and a funded benefit plan. The level of 
benefit provided is based on the length of service and terminal salary of the person entitled. The defined benefit plan 
surplus or deficit in the balance sheet comprises the total for each plan of the fair value of plan assets less the present value 
of the defined benefit obligation (using a discount rate based on federal government bonds in issue as at the reporting 
date). 

The cost of defined benefit plans is determined using the projected unit credit method. The liability recognised in the 
statement of fin a ncia I position in respect of the unfunded defined benefit service gratuity scheme is the present va I ue of the 
defined benefit obligation at the reporting date. With respect to the funded benefit plan, the related pension liability 
recognized in the statement of financial position is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the 
reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. 
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1.19 Employee benefits (continued) 
Actuarial valuations for defined benefit plans are carried out annually. The discount rate applied in arriving at the present 
value of the pension liability represents the market yield on government bonds at the calculation date and reflects the 
duration ofthe liabilities of the benefit plan. 

Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in full in the period in which they occur, in other comprehensive income without 
recycling to the statement of income in subsequent periods. Current service cost, the recognized element of any past 
service cost and the net interest cost arising on the pension liability are included in the same line items in the income 
statement as the related compensation cost. 

(b) Other long term employee benefits 
Unilever measures long term employee benefits using the same accounting policies for defined benefit plans except that 
actuarial gains and losses, and past service cost are recognised as expense or income immediately. 

( c) Share-based payment transaction - Cash-settled transactions 
The cost of cash-settled transactions is measured initially at fair value at the grant date using a pricing model similar to the 
'projected unit credit method'. This fair value is expensed over the period until the vesting date with recognition of a 
corresponding liability. The liability is re-measured to fair value at each reporting date up to, and including the settlement 
date, with changes in fair value recognised in employee benefits expense. 

(d) Short term benefits - Profit-sharing and bonus plans 
Unilever recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a formula that takes into 
consideration the profit attributable to Uni lever's shareholders after certain adjustments. Unilever recognises a provision 
where contractually obliged orwhere there is a past practice that has created a constructive obligation. 

1.20 Revenue recognition 
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable for 
goods supplied, stated net of discounts, returns and value added taxes. Discounts given by Unilever include rebates, price 
reductions and incentives given to customers. 

Revenue for goods is recognised when: 
-The significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the customer 
-Unilever does not retain effective control over goods sold 
-The amount of revenue can be reliably measured 
-It is possible that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to Unilever 
-The costs incurred in respect of the sale can be measured reliably 

1.21 Leases 
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by another party, the lessor, are 
classified as operating leases. Payments, including prepayments, made under operating leases (net of any incentives 
received from the lessor) are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease. 

All other leases are accounted for as finance leases. Finance leases relate to various leasehold land properties which the 
Company holds the right to use for between 50 and 99 years. The Company has retained significant risks and rewards 
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1.21 Leases (continued) 
over the use of these properties, including construction of its offices and factories, and is responsible for maintaining the 
properties. The leasehold land were acquired under the Land Use Act, and payments were made upfront. There are no 
annual lease repayments connected with these leases. 

1.22 Dividend distribution 
Dividend distribution to Unilever's shareholders is recognised as a liability in Uni lever's financial statements in the period 
in which the dividends are approved by the shareholders. 

1.23 Finance income and finance cost 
Finance income and finance costs are recognised using the effective interest rate method. 

Finance income includes interest received or receivable on balances and deposits with banks, exchange differences 
(excluding differences on paybles to foreign suppliers which has been included in cost of sales) and derivative gains on 
derivative financial assets. 

Finance cost includes interest on borrowings, interest charge related to defined benefit plans, gains or losses arising on the 
early settlement of debt, exchange difference on non-derivative financial assets and liabilities (excluding differences on 
paybles to foreign suppliers which has been included in cost of sales) and derivative losses on derivative financial liabilities. 

1.24 Share capital 
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are 
recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects. 

1.25 Other non-current asset 
Other non-current assets represent the difference between cash outflow of prepaid employee benefits and the present 
value of amounts recoverable. The amortisation of the amount is charged to income statement annually. The current 
portion of the prepaid benefits is included in employee loan receivable. 

Other non-current assets also represent non-current portion of prepayments. 

1.26 Government grants 
Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be 
received and the Company will comply with all attached conditions. Government grants relating to costs are deferred and 
recognised in the income statement on a systematic basis over the period necessary to match them with the costs that they 
are intended to compensate. 
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2. Financial risk management 

2.1 Financial risk factors 
Unilever's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (foreign exchange risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. 
Unilever's overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to 
minimise potential adverse effects on Unilever's financial performance. 

Risk management is carried out by a Treasury Department under policies approved by Board of Directors. Unilever's 
Treasury Department identifies, evaluates and manages financial risks in close co-operation with Unilever's operating 
units. The Board provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as written policies covering specific areas, 
such as foreign exchange risk, credit risk, use of derivative financial instruments and non-derivative financial instruments, 
and investment of excess liquidity. These policies ore mostly Unilever Global Policies adopted for local use. 

(a) Market risk 
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices - such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices -will 
affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk 
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return. 

i. Foreign exchange risk 
Unilever is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures. 
During the year, the Company explored foreign currency official instruments available in the market to settle obligations 
denominated in foreign currencies and to manage foreign currency volatility. These include: Central Bank of Nigeria 
(CBN) forwards, Over the Counter non-deliverable futures anchored by FMDQ as well as the CBN interventions in the 
interbank market. 

As a result, the Company's transactions were settled at a range of rates during the year. As at year end the assets and 
liabilities were translated using the FMDQ/interbank rate which represented the rate at which the future cash flows 
represented by the balances could have been settled if those cash flows had occurred at year end. 

At 31 December 2016, the unhedged financial assets and financial liabilities amounted to Nl 1.1 billion (2015: N2.1 
billion). 

At 31 December 2016, if the Noira had weakened/strengthened by 7 6%* against key currencies (Euro and USD) to which 
the Company is exposed to, with all other variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year would have been N6.4 
billion higher/lower. 

At 31 December 2016, if the Nairo had weakened/strengthened by 76%* against other currencies (GBPond ZAR) to which 
the Company is exposed to, with all other variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year would hove been N69.6 
million higher/lower. 

*76% represents the 5 year average change in the conversion rate of key currencies to Nairo. 

During the year, the Company entered future contracts to hedge its currency risk with a maturity of less than 1 year from the 
reporting date. As at the reporting dote, the amount of derivative gain recognised in the profit or loss amounts to N 13.4m 
(Note 10) 
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2.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 
ii. Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk 
Unilever's interest rate risk arises from bank overdrafts and bank loans. Overdrafts issued at variable rates expose 
Unilever to cash flow interest rate risk. Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose Unilever to fair value interest rate risk. 

Unilever analyses its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis. Various scenarios are simulated taking into consideration 
refinancing, renewal of existing positions and alternative financing. Based on these scenarios, Unilever calculates the 
impact on profit and loss of a defined interest rate shift. For each simulation, the same interest rate shift is used for all 
currencies. The scenarios are run only for liabilities that represent the major interest-bearing positions. 

The average interest rate on short-term borrowings in 2016 was 18.3% (2015: 15%). 

The following table shows the split in fixed and floating rate exposures: 

2016 2015 
N'000 N'000 

Fixed rate (bank loans) - Note 26 5, 768,831 8,017,598 

Floating rates (intercompany loan) - Note 26 15,146,720 

Floating rates (bank overdrafts) - Note 18 4,535,672 

20,915,551 12,553,270 

Assuming that all other variables remain constant, a 1 % increase in floating interest rates on a full year basis would lead to 
an additional N4.07 million charge to the income statement (2015: N45.4 million) . A 1 % decrease in floating interest 
rates on a full-year basis would have an equal but opposite effect. 

(b) Credit risk 
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or a counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet 
its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company's receivables from customers 

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit 
exposures to wholesale and retail customers, including outstanding receivables and committed transactions. For banks 
and financial institutions, only parties classified as "International Golden Circle" (preferred choice for the Unilever group) 
are accepted. Exposure limit with the banks is set at a maximum of N3.5 billion. Risk control assesses the credit quality of 
wholesale customers, taking into account their financial position, past experience and other factors. Individual risk limits 
are set based on internal or external ratings in accordance with limits set by the board or external ratings. The utilisation of 
credit limits is regularly monitored. 

Concentration ofcredit risk with respect to trade receivables is limited, due to the Company's customer base being diverse. 
Credit terms for customers are determined on individual basis. Credit risk relating to trade receivables is managed by 
reference to the customers' credit limit, inventory balance, cash position and secondary sales to final consumers. 

Employees are not considered a credit risk as amounts due from employees are deductible monthly from gross pay. 
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2.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 
The disclosure in Note 16 specifically identifies a group of trade receivables i.e. the key distributors whose dealerships were 
terminated between 2008 and 2012, and have been fully impaired. However the gross balances (and related impairment) 
have been retained in the books to enable management monitor ongoing litigation involving some of the distributors. 

( c) Liquidity risk 
Liquidity risk is the risk that Unilever will face difficulty in meeting its obligations associated with its financial liabilities. 
Unilever's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure that it will have sufficient funds to meet its liabilities when due 
without incurring unacceptable losses. In doing this management considers both normal and stressed conditions. A 
material and sustained shortfall in our cash flow could undermine Unilever's credibility, impair investor confidence and 
also restrict Unilever's ability to raise funds. 

Cash flow from operating activities provides the funds to service the financing of financial liabilities on a day-to-day basis. 
Unilever seeks to manage its liquidity requirements by maintaining relationships with different financial institutions 
through short-term and long-term credit facilities. 

Cash flow forecasting is performed in Unilever. Unilever's finance team monitors rolling forecasts of Unilever's liquidity 
requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash to meet operational needs while maintaining sufficient headroom on its 
undrawn committed borrowing facilities at all times so that Unilever does not breach borrowing limits or covenants (where 
applicable) on any of its borrowing facilities. Such forecasting takes into consideration Unilever's debt financing plans, 
covenant compliance and compliance with gearing ratios. 

Where current liabilities exceed current assets, the Company seeks to manage its liquidity requirements by maintaining 
access to bank lending which are renewable annually. 

At the reporting date, Unilever held cash in bank of N8.9 billion (2015: Nl .5 billion). Unilever also had Nil overdraft 
(2015: N4.5 billion) and undrawn facilities of N3.3 billion (2015: N 18 billion). 

The table below analyses Unilever's non-derivative financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the 
remaining period at the reporting date to the contractual maturity date. Derivative financial liabilities are included in the 
analysis if their contractual maturities are essential for an understanding of the timing of the cash flows. The Company has 
no derivative financial liabilities. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. 

Between 3 Between Between 
Less than months 1 and 2 2 and 5 Over 
3 months and 1 year years years 5 years Total 

N'OOO N'OOO N'OOO N'OOO N'OOO N'OOO 

2016 
Trade and other payables* 31,949,912 31,949,912 

lntercompany Loan 4,809,133 l 0,337,587 15,146,720 

Loans and borrowings 5,088,617 268,571 328,155 314,378 15,333 6,015,054 
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2.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 

Between 3 Between Between 
Less than months 1 and 2 2 and 5 Over 
3 months and 1 year years years 5 years Total 

N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 

2015 
Bank overdrafts 4,535,672 4,535,672 

Trade and other payables* 22,026,441 22,026,441 

Loans and borrowings 7,096,018 299,915 365,545 650,650 29,234 8,441,362 
===============================~ 

At amortised cost 

2016 2015 
N'000 N'000 

Liabilities as per statement of financial position 
Bank overdrafts {Note 18) 4,535,672 

Trade and other payables (Note 19)* 31,949,912 22,026,441 

lntercompany loan (Note 26) 15,146,720 

Loans and borrowings {Note 26) 5,768,831 8,017,598 

52,865,463 34,579,711 

*This analysis is required only for financial instruments. Accordingly, trade and other payables excludes pension 
obligations, withholding tax payables and value added tax. 

2.2 Capital risk management 
Uni lever's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard Unilever's ability to continue as a going concern in order to 
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce 
the cost of capital . 

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, Unilever may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, 
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. 

Consistent with others in the industry, Unilever monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as 
total liabilities {non-current liabilities and current liabilities) over total assets (non-current assets and current assets), based 
on balances reported in the statement offinancial position . 
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2.2 Capital risk management (continued) 

2016 2015 
N'000 N'000 

Total liabilities 60,801,366 42,169,231 

Total assets 72,491,309 50,172,484 

Gearing ratio (%) 84% 84% 

3. Critical accounting estimates and iudgements 

Estimates and accounting judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, 
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. 

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions in the 
application of accounting policies that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual 
results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and judgements are continuously evaluated and are based on historical 
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future period affected. 

Information about critical judgements in applying accounting policies, as well as estimates and assumptions that have the 
most significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next 
financial year, are: 

i. Defined benefit obligations 
The cost of defined benefit gratuity plans and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial 
valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions which may differ from actual developments in the 
future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. 

Due to the complexity of the valuation, the underlying assumptions and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is 
highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. 

In determining the appropriate discount rate, management considers the interest rates of government bonds with 
extrapolated maturities corresponding to the expected duration of the defined benefit obligation. 

The mortality rate is based on the rates published in the PA (90) Male Table and A67/70 Ultimate Tables, both published 
jointly by the Institute and Faculty ofActuaries in the UK. 

Future salary increases are based on expected future inflation rates in Nigeria. Further details about the assumptions are 
given in Note 21. 
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Notes to the financial statements (continued} 

3. Critical accounting estimates and iudgements (continued) 
ii. Recognition and measurement of contingencies: key assumptions a bout the Ii kelihood and magnitude of an outflow of 
resources (Note 22). 
iii. Determining the fair value of stakeholders' scheme (Note 28). 
iv. Determining accruals for custom duties, freight charges and marketing expenses (Note 19). 

4. Segment reporting 
The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the Leadership Team (LT) of Unilever Nigeria Pie. The 

Leadership Team reviews Unilever's monthly financial and operational information in order to assess performance and 

allocate resources. Management has determined the operating segments based on these reports. The Leadership Team 

consider the business from a product category perspective. Unilever is segmented into Food Products (FP) and Home Care 

(HC) and Personal Care (PC) products. 


Foods-including sales of tea, savoury and spreads. 

Home Care- including sales of fabric care, household cleaning and water purification products. 

There are no intersegmental sales and Nigeria is the Company's primary geographical segment as it comprises 95% of the 

Company's sales. 


The Leadership Team assesses the performance based on operating profits for each operating segment that is reviewed. 

Total financing (including interest income and expense), income taxes and retirement benefit obligations are managed on 

an entity-wide basis and are not allocated to operating segments. 


Total segment assets exclude tax related assets. These are included in the reconciliation to the total assets on the Statement 

offinancial position. 

2016 
Revenue 
Depreciation and amortisation 
Segmental operating profit 
Finance income 
Finance cost 
Amortisation of prepaid benefit on employee loan 
Profit before taxation 

Property, plant and equipment 
Assets held for sale 
Inventories 

Food Home Personal 
Products Care Care Total 

N'OOO N'OOO N'OOO N'OOO 
36,393,828 15,779,768 17,598,465 69,777,061 

1,328,831 576,081 642,477 2,547,389 
3,058,451 1,325,913 1,478,731 5,863,095 

536,053 232,393 259,176 1,027,622 
(1,422,131) (616,528) (687,586) (2,726,245) 

(58,050) 
4,106,422 

Food Home Personal 
Products Care Care Total 

N'OOO N'OOO N'OOO N'OOO 
15,269,678 6,619,773 7,382,735 29,272,186 

171,411 l 71,411 
5,153,066 2,233,978 2,491,455 9,878,499 

20,422,744 9,025,162 9,874,190 39,322,096 

Other non-current assets 1,676,576 
Cash and bank balances 12,474,141 
Other current assets 19,018,496 
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Notes to the financial statements {continued) 
4. Segment reporting (continued} 
Trade and other payables 
Income tax 
Deferred income 
Loans and borrowings 
Deferred tax liabilities 
Retirement benefit obligations 
Long service obligations 
Other employee benefits 
Net assets 
Capital expenditure 

(262,312) 

2,205,590 

(113,718) 

956,176 

(126,825) 

1,066,380 

(32,476,502) 
(502,855) 

(95,537) 
(20,915,551) 

(3,942,337) 
(2,613,268) 

(181,166) 
(74,150) 

11,689,943 
4l228l 146 

Food Home Personal 
Products Care Care Total 

2015 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 
Revenue 29,912,407 11,991,668 17,317,673 59,221,748 
Depreciation and amortisation 1,080,922 433,334 625,795 2,140,051 
Impairment charge 311,496 124,877 180,339 616,712 
Impairment reversal (183,053) (183,053) 
Segmental operating profit 2,359,014 945,712 1,365,742 4,670,468 
Finance income 152,481 61,129 88,279 301,889 
Finance cost (1,601,401) (641,990) (927,125) (3,170,516) 
Amortisation of prepaid benefit on employee loan (30,778) 
Profit before taxation 1,771,063 

Food Home Personal 
Products Care Care Total 

2015 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 
Property, plant and equipment 13,823,811 5,541,866 8,003,242 27,368,919 
Assets held for sale 171,411 171,411 
Inventories 3,117,987 1,249,979 1,805,147 6,173,113 

16,941,798 6,963,256 9,808,389 33,713,443 

Other non-current assets 1,795,751 
Cash and bank balances 4,435,244 
Other current assets 10,228,046 
Trade and other payables (22,542,842) 
Income tax (80,735) (32,366) (46,740) (159,841) 
Bank overdrafts (4,535,672) 
Deferred income (128,293) 
Loans and borrowings (8,017,598) 
Deferred tax liabilities (3,060,591) 
Retirement benefit obligations (3,369,353) 
Long service obligations (266,548) 
Other employee benefits (88,494) 
Net assets 8l003l252 
Capital expenditure 2,560,056 1,026,308 1,482,134 5,068,498 
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Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
4. Segment reporting (continued) 

2016 2015 
N'000 N'000 

Revenue by geographical location of customers: 
Domestic (within Nigeria) 66,429,149 56,940,146 
Export (outside Nigeria) 3,347,912 2,281,602 

69,777,061 59,221,748 

The Company has 96 (2015: 97) key distributors, and no single key distributor accounted for more than l 0% of the 
Company's revenue. 

All the Company's non-current assets are located in Nigeria. 

5. Expenses by nature 
The following items have been charged/(credited) in arriving at profit before tax: 

2016 2015 
N'000 N'000 

Raw materials and consumables 35,676,236 28,635,437 
Bought in products 6,101,813 2,962,451 
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 14) 2,313,444 1,906,568 
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 15) 233,945 233,483 
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts (Note 17) 42,943 41,728 
Staff costs (Note 8) 6,748,272 6,961,370 
Impairment of property, plant and equipment (Note 14) 616,712 
Brand and marketing (Note 9) 4,013,565 5,340,136 
Service fees (Note 9) 1,533,844 1,307,955 
Handling charges 3,151,087 2,844,098 
Auditors' remuneration - Audit fees 22,500 15,752 
Auditors' remuneration - Non-Audit fees 
Professional service fees 103,775 70,650 
Utilities l, l 02,482 841,672 
Business travel expenses 373,903 449,869 
IT costs 1,244,320 791, l 08 
Consumer market research 458,872 448,239 
Repairs and maintenance cost 608,283 610,256 
Insurance 171,376 161,651 
Donations 18,787 212,066 
Trainings and meals 131,008 147,725 
Office materials 45,798 60,638 
Total cost of sales, distribution and administrative expenses 64,096,253 54,659,564 
Analysed as: 
Cost of sales 49,481,020 38,174,248 
Selling and distribution expenses 3,151,087 2,844,098 
Marketing and administrative expenses 11,464,146 13,641,218 

64,096,253 54,659,564 
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Notes to the financial statements {continued) 

5. Expenses by nature (continued) 

56. Recognised in raw materials and consumables & brand and marketing are amounts of N520 million and N378 
million respectively (totaling N898 million), relating to reversal of excess accruals for goods and services received in 
previous years. Management carried out a review of long outstanding open liabilities and had consultation and 
reconciliation with creditors to ascertain the validity of these liabilities as at year end. Based on the outcome, the stated 
amounts were released into the Income Statement. 

6. Other income 
2016 

N'000 
2015 

N'000 
Profit on disposal of Property, plant and equipment 
Gain on sale of raw materials (Note 6(i)) 

8,189 
116,048 
124,237 

77,506 

77,506 

(i) This represents net gain on sale of raw materials to a third party during the course of the year. The total sales proceeds 
and cost ofthe raw materials amounted to N 1,088 million and N972 million respectively. 

7. Compensation of key management personnel and directors 
Key management personnel comprises the directors (executive and non-executive) and other key management staff who 
are members of the Leadership Team. 

Compensation to key management personnel was as follows: 

2016 2015 
N'000 N'000 

(1) Short term benefits 
Non executive directors (fees only) 7,000 5,177 
Non executive directors (excluding fees) 23,787 22,606 
Executive directors 321,526 276,019 
Members of the Leadership team (excluding executive directors) 617.992 475.008 

970.305 778.810 
{ii) Post-employment benefits: 
Executive directors 10,862 14,111 
Members of the Leadership team {excluding executive directors) 28,165 32,481 

39,027 46,592 

2016 2015 
N'000 N'000 

{iii) The emoluments of the Chairman of Board of Directors 6,997 8,089 

{iv) The emoluments of the highest paid director 183,727 153,586 
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8. Employee benefits expense 
2016 2015 

N'000 N'000 
Salaries and wages 4,674,406 4,830,056 
Pension contribution 431,653 455,629 
Gratuity and Long service awards (Note 21 (vi)) 256,473 206,658 
Stakeholders scheme (Note 28) (14,344) 44,390 
Other employee allowances 1,400,084 1,424,637 

6,748,272 6,961,370 

Other employee allowances include incentives, medical allowances, product packs and other benefits which are 
consistentwith industry practice. 

The average number of persons, excluding executive directors, employed by Unilever during the year was as follows: 

2016 2015 
N'000 N'000 

Administration 124 126 
Technical and production 882 909 
Sales and marketing 201 213 

1 207 1 248 

The table below shows the numbers of direct employees of Unilever excluding executive directors, other than employees 
who discharged their duties wholly or mainly outside Nigeria, who earned over N250,000 in the year and which fell within 
the bands stated. 

N N Number Number 
250,001 500,000 7 7 
500,001 750,000 29 14 
750,001 1,000,000 18 24 

1,000,001 1,250,000 18 50 
1,250,001 1,500,000 102 198 
1,500,001 1,750,000 169 280 
1,750,001 2,000,000 223 187 
2,000,001 2,250,000 143 85 
2,250,001 2,500,000 94 27 
2,500,001 2,750,000 48 13 
2,750,001 5,000,000 46 48 
5,000,001 10,000,000 196 208 

10,000,001 15,000,000 54 57 
15,000,001 20,000,000 20 22 
20,000,001 30,000,000 29 19 
30,000,001 40,000,000 6 6 
40,000,001 50,000,000 1 2 
50,000,001 60,000,000 1 1 
60,000,001 70,000,000 3 

1 207 1 248 
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9. Marketing and administrative expenses 

Brand and marketing 
Overheads 
Service Fees 

10. Finance income 

Interest on call deposits and bank accounts 
Exchange gain 
Derivative gain 
Interest income from employee loans 

11. Finance costs 

Interest expense 
Exchange loss 
Amortised cost interest 

12. Income tax 

(i) Income statement 

Current income tax 
Tertiary education tax 
Prior year under provision- current income tax 
Prior year (over)/under provision - tertiary education tax 

Deferred tax charge 

Tax charge to income statement 

Other comprehensive income 

Deferred tax on temporary differences 

2016 
N'000 

4,013,565 
5,916,737 
1,533,844 

11,464,146 

2016 
N'000 
333,174 
622,984 

13,414 
58,050 

1,027,622 

2016 
N'000 

2,575,513 
5,110 

145,622 
2,726,245 

2016 
N'000 
372,131 
130,724 

(540) 
502,315 

532,222 

2015 
N'000 

5,340,136 
6,993,127 
1,307,955 

13,641,218 

2015 
N'000 
207,858 

63,253 

30,778 
301,889 

2015 
N'000 

2,905,920 
77,366 

187,230 
3,170,516 

2015 
N'000 
56,750 

103,092 
2,998 

24,219 
187,059 


391,638 


1,034,537 578,697 


2016 2015 
N'000 N'000 

349,524 (184,287) 
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Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

12. Income tax (continued) 
The amount provided for income tax was computed on the basis of the company income tax rate of 30% in line with section 
l 5(a) of Companies Income Tax Act 1979 (as amended) . 


Tertiary education tax charge is at 2% ofassessable profits in accordance with Decree No. 7 of 1993. 


(ii) The movement in current income tax liabilities is as follows: 

At 1 January: 
- Current income tax 
- Tertiary education tax 

Charge for the year: 
- Current income tax 
- Tertiary education tax 

(Over)/under provision: 
- Current income tax 
- Tertiary education tax 

Tax paid: 
- Current income tax 
- Tertiary education tax 

At 31 December 

(iii) Reconciliation of effective tax to the statutory tax 

Profit before tax 

Tax calculated at the applicable statutory rate of 32% (2015: 30%) 
Education Tax 
Tax effects of expenses not deductible for tax purposes 
Tax effects on tax incentives 
Tax exempt income 
(Over)/under provision in prior year 
Previously unrecognized tax incentives 
Impact of 2% DT from prior year 

Tax charge in income statement 

2016 
N'000 

2015 
N'000 

56,749 
103,091 

113,498 
99,272 

372,131 
130,724 

56,750 
103,092 

(540) 
2,998 

24,219 

(56,749) 
(102,551) 

(116,497) 
(123,492) 

502.855 159.840 

2016 
N'000 

2015 
N'000 

4, l 06,422 1,771,063 

1,314,055 

2,675 
(134,212) 

(63,048) 

(84,933) 
1,034,537 

531,319 
103,092 
261, l 08 

(293,006) 

27,216 
(51,032) 

578,697 
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13. Earnings per share 
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted 
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. The basic earnings per share is calculated using the 
number of shares in issue at reporting date. 

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to 
assume conversion of all diluted potential ordinary shares. There were no potentially dilutive shares at the reporting date 
(2015: nil), thus the basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per share have the same value. 

2016 2015 
N'000 N'000 

Profit attributable to shareholders 3,071,885 1,192,366 

Number of ordinary shares in issue 3,783,296 3,783,296 

Basic and diluted earnings per share (Naira) 0.81 0.32 

There have been no transactions involving ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares between the reporting date and the 
date of approval of these financial statements. 

14. Property, plant and equipment (PPE) 

Capital 
(i) work Lease Plant Furniture 

-in­ hold and and Motor 
progress land Buildings machinery equipment vehicles Total 

N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 
Cost 
At 1 January 2015 3,015,302 67,615 7,080,868 24,819,535 1,163,828 828,221 36,975,369 
Additions 5,068,498 5,068,498 
Transfers (6,780,261) 1,708,200 472,618 4,245,509 263,195 90,739 
Disposals (21,872) (98,252) (4,917,403) (58,341) (197,200) (5,293,068) 
Write off (10,132) (10, 132)) 
Reclassification to 
assets held for sale (20,350) (326,742) (347,092) 
At 31 December 2015 1,293,407 1,733,593 7,128,492 24,147,641 1,368,682 721,760 36,393,575 
Additions 4,228,146 4,228,146 
Transfers (1,763,662) 80,549 121,503 1,076,401 199,042 286,167 
Disposals (2,595) (203) (85,560) (88,358) 
Write off (2,656) (2,656) 
At 31 December 2016 3,755,235 1,814,142 7,249,995 25,221,447 1,567,521 922,367 40,530,707 
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Notes to the 	financial statements (continued) 
14. 	 Property, plant and equipment (PPE) (continued) 

Capital 
work Lease Plant Furniture 

-in­ hold and and Motor 
Depreciation / progress land Buildings machinery equipment vehicles Total 
impairment N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 

At 1 January 2015 32,282 870,805 10,359,893 299,714 581,896 12,144,590 
Depreciation charge for the year 7,836 205,063 1,465,540 124,443 103,686 1,906,568 
Impairment charge 616,712 616,712 
Reclassification of impairment 8,146 174,907 (183,053) 
Impairment reversal (8,146) (174,907) (183,053) 
Disposals (108,592) (4,930,603) (55,761) (189,524) (5,284,480) 
Reclassification to assets 
held for sale {12,341) {163,340) {1751681 l 
At 31 December 2015 27,777 803,936 7,328,489 368,396 496,058 9,024,56 
Depreciation charge for the year 208,314 1,831,950 145,797 127,383 2,313,444 
Disposals {303) {79,276) {79,579) 
At 31 December 2016 27,777 1,012,250 9,160,439 513,890 544,165 11,258,521 

Net book value: 
At 1 January 2015 3,015,302 35,333 612101063 1414591063 8641114 2461325 24,830,779 

At 31 December 2015 l 12931407 1J05l816 613241556 1618191152 110001286 2251702 2713681919 

At 31 December 2016 3,755,235 1,786,365 6,237,745 16,061 ,008 1,053,631 378,202 29,272,186 

(ii) Change in accounting estimate 
During the year, the Company reviewed the estimated useful life of its leasehold land as unlimited on the basis that it is 
reasonably certain that the Government will usually renew the lease upon expiration and that the substance of the lease is 
that the Company has ownership of the land, not a right to use the land for a predefined period. Consequently, the 
Company has discontinued depreciation of leasehold land. 

The change has impacted depreciation charge in the following years as follows: 

2016 2017 2018 2019 
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 

Increase in depreciation 	 17,930 18,141 18,141 18, 141 
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Notes to the financial statements (continued} 

14. Property, plant and equipment (PPE) (continued) 

(iii) Security 

As at 31 December 2016, no item of property, plant and equipment was pledged as security for liabilities (2015: nil). 


(iv) Capital work-in-progress 

Capital work in progress of N3.8 billion represents plant and machinery and buildings under construction. 


Land & 
Buildings 

N'000 

Plant 
and 

machinery 
N'000 

Furniture 
and 

equipment 
N'000 

Motor 
vehicles 

N'000 
Total 

N'000 

Capital work-in-progress 131,870 3,226,670 347,467 49,228 3,755,235 

(v) Capital commitments 
Contractual commitments with respect to property, plant and equipment contracted for at the balance sheet date but not 
recognised in the financial statements: 

2016 	 2015 
N'000 N'000 

Capital commitments 	 1,600,646 168,048 

15. 	 Intangible assets 
2016 2015 

Cost: 	 N'000 N'000 

At January 1 2,186,972 2,182,945 
Additions 5,488 4 027 
At 31 December 2,192,460 2,186,972 

Amortisation: 
At January 1 1,018,391 784,908 
Charge for the year 233,945 233,483 
At 31 December 1,252,336 1,018,391 

Net book value as at 31 December 	 940,124 1,168,581 

Amortisation charge for the year has been included in administrative expenses. 
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16. Inventories 

Raw and packaging materials 
Work in progress 
Goods in Transit 
Finished goods 
Engineering spares and other inventories 

2016 2015 
N'OOO N'OOO 

6,008,148 3,174,611 
563,706 599,929 

l,165,228 192,433 
1,397,021 1,422,949 

744,396 783,191 
9,878,499 6,173,113 

The amount of inventories written down and included in cost of sales was N46 l million (2015: Nl ,086 million). This 
represents allowance for slow-moving, obsolete, damaged and missing inventories. There was no utilisation or release to 
the income statement from inventory provisions during the year (2015: N424 million). 
The cost of inventories recognized as an expense and included in cost of sales amounted to N40.7 billion (2015: N30.56 
billion). 

17. Trade and other receivables 

(i) 
Trade receivables: gross 
Less impairment 

Trade receivables: net 
Advances and prepayments 
Unclaimed dividend held with registrar 
Interest receivable 
Other receivables (Note 17 (iv)) 
Due from related parties (Note 25) 
Deposit for imports (Note 17 (vi)) 

2016 2015 
N'000 N'000 

4,336,828 4,174,782 
(307,723) (1,141,523) 

4,029,105 3,033,259 
3,152,550 598,881 

212,236 396,665 
79,628 

1,921,107 486,720 
9,077,172 5,627,320 

473.780 

18,945,578 10,142,845 

Advances and prepayments include prepaid warehouse rents, insurance premium, and advances to vendors 

(ii) 

Analysis for trade receivables: gross 


Carrying amount neither past due nor impaired 

Carrying amount of trade receivables past due and not impaired, gross (14-30 days) 

Carrying amount of trade receivables past due and not impaired, gross (31-365 days) 

Carrying amount of trade receivables past due and impaired, gross (over 365 days) 

Impairment: 
Impairment (31 - 365 days) 
Impairment (over 365 days) 

2016 2015 
N'000 N'000 

3,348,032 1,725,642 
297,707 1,041,138 
383,366 293,760 
307,723 1,114,242 

(43,148) (27,281) 
(264,575) (l,114,242) 

410291105 3!033/259 
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17. Trade and other receivables (continued) 

The amount due over 365 days relates to key distributors whose dealership were terminated or are inactive. No collateral is 

held by Unilever as security for the amounts; a full allowance has been made for the total amount due. 

The Company believes that the unimpaired amounts that are past due by more than 30 days are still collectible in full, 

based on historic payment behaviour and extensive analysis of customer credit risk. 


Trade receivables are local dedicated Unilever distributors. 


2016 2015 
(iii) N'000 N'000
Movement in allowance for trade receivables: 
At 1 January 
Charged to income statement 1,141,523 1,099,795 
Bad debt written off 42,943 41,728 
At 31 December (876,743) 

307,723 1,141,523 

Impairment charge on trade receivables are recognised in administrative expenses. 

(iv) Included in other receivables is a derivative asset of Nl 3.4m (2015:Nil) arising from future contracts entered into 
during the year. The maturity date of the contract is less than 1 year from the reporting date. 

(v) Analysis of related parties receivables: 
2016 2015 

N'000 N'000 
Carrying amount neither past due nor impaired 2,367,091 1,115,421 
Carrying amount of related party receivables past due and not impaired, 
gross (46-365 days) 6Jl 0!081 4 ,511 .899 

9,077,172 5,627,320 

Related party receivables arise from export sales which are payable within 45 days and exchange of services which are 

payable within 30 days. 

N7.6 l billion of these receivables relate mainly to Unilever Ghana and Cote D' lvoire. Similarly, the Company has 

payables of N7.0 billion due to these entities. Consequently, it has assessed that these receivables are not impaired . 


(vi) Deposit for imports represents foreign currencies purchased for funding letter of credits in respect of imported raw 
materials 
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18. Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash at bank and in hand 
Fixed deposit 

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of Financial Position 

Short term bank loan 
Bank overdrafts 

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of Cash Flows 

2016 
N'000 

5,702,282 
6,771,859 

2015 
N'000 

1,549,014 
2,886,230 

12,474,141 4,435,244 

(5,000,000) (7,000,000) 
(4,535,672) 

7,474,141 (7,100,428) 

Fixed deposit includes unclaimed dividend of N2.56 billion (2015: N2 .7 billion) returned from the registrar. 

Unilever hod overdraft facilities up to a limit of N3.3 billion as at 31 December 2016 (2015: N 18 billion). The facilities 
ore unsecured and do not attract any cost if they ore not utilised. The bank overdraft facilities ore subject to annual renewal. 

'The average interest rates on bank overdrafts at the year end is as follows: 

19. Trade and other payables 

Trade payables 
Amount due to related companies (Note 25) 
Dividend payable (Note l 9(i)) 
Accrued liabilities 
Accrued brand and marketing expenses 
Accrued shipping and freight charges 
Non trade payables 

(i) Dividend payable 

As at 1 January 
Dividend declared 
Dividend paid to Registrar 
Cash with Registrar for unclaimed dividend 
Payment made from cash with Registrar 
Statute barred dividend 
Unclaimed dividend returned by Registrar 
Payment made from unclaimed dividend investment 

As at 31 December 

2016 2015 
15.00% 13.25% 

2016 2015 
N'000 N'000 

8,173,171 6,280,820 
15,998,593 7,618,844 

2,990,997 3,351,652 
732,608 1,477,732 
367,784 366,432 
581,851 692,439 

3,631,498 2,754,923 
32,476,502 22,542,842 

3,351,652 414,560 
189,165 378,330 

(186,388) (378,330) 
396,665 

(184,429) 
(61,231) (140,413) 

2,680,840 
(117,772) 

2,990,997 3,351,652 
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Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

19. Trade and other payables (continued) 

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the directors have proposed a dividend of N0.10 per share, amounting to N378 
million which will be subject to the approval of the shareholders at the next Annual General Meeting. 

Unclaimed dividend returned by the registrar is included in a fixed deposit account. In line with SEC rules, this unclaimed 
dividend is not available to be used by the Companyfor its own business. 

20. Deferred tax liabilities 
Deferred income tax is calculated using the statutory income tax rate of 30% (2015: 30%). The movement on the deferred 
tax account is as follows: 

2016 2015 
N'000 N'000 

The movement in deferred tax is as follows: 


Deferred tax liability: 

At start of year 3,060,591 2,853,240 

Changes during the year: 

- Charge to income statement (Note 12) 532,222 391,638 

- Charge/(credit) to other comprehensive income 349,524 (184,287) 


At end of year 3,942,337 3,060,591 


The movement in the deferred tax account is as follows: 


Accelerated Employee Non-
tax benefit deductible Other 

Deferred tax 
liabilities/(assets) 

depreciation obligations 
N'000 N'000 

epenses liabilities 
N'000 N'000 

Total 
N'000 

At 1 January 2015 4,181,331 (861,752) (408,489) (57,850) 2,853,240 
Charge/(credit) to income statement 1,304,943 (199,131) (709,100) (5,074) 391,638 
Charge to other comprehensive income (184,287) (184,287) 

At 31 December 2015 / 1 January 2016 5,486,274 (1,245,170) (1,117,589) (62,924) 3,060,591 
Charge/(credit) to income statement (29,789) 28,236 860,632 (326,857) 532,222 
Charge to other comprehensive income 349,524 349,524 

At 31 December 2016 5,456,485 (867,410) (256,957) (389,781) 3,942,337 
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Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
21. Retirement benefit and long service award obligations 

(i) Retirement benefit obligation 
Unilever operates a funded benefit scheme for retired employees. The funded benefit scheme is for retirees who have 
received pension. With effect from l January 2013, only employees who were employed prior to January 2006 and who 
had not opted out of the Unilever savings scheme are permitted entry into the funded benefit scheme. The plan asset of the 
scheme is funded by contributions from the retired employees. 

Unilever also operates an unfunded defined benefit plan retirement scheme for employees under its gratuity scheme. For 
management staff, the benefit payable is 9% of total emolument for each year of service provided 5 years of service has 
been completed while for non-management staff, a g raduated scheme was applied depending on the number of years of 
service. The plan assets of the scheme are unfunded. With effect from l January 2015, new employees no longer qualify 
for this benefit. In addition, Unilever provides medical and soap pack benefits to retired employees. With effect from l 
January 2013, only employees who were employed prior to January 2006 and who had not opted out of the Unilever 
savings scheme are qualified for the benefits. 

(ii) Long service obligation 
The Company grants long service awards to employees who have served continously well and loyally. Depending on the 
length of service, employees are granted both monetary and non monetary awards. Qualified employees have the option 
of monetising the non monetary awards. 

(iii) Summary of retirement benefits and long service award obligations 
The amounts recognised in the statement offinancial position are determined as follows: 

2016 2015 
N'000 N'000 

Funded retirement benefit obligation (Note 21 (iv)) (1,237,335) (1 ,258,656) 
Fair value of plan assets (Note 21 (v)) l.721.956 1.549.038 

Retirement benefit surplus 484,621 290,382 
Unfunded retirement benefit obligations (Note 21 (iv)) (2,613,268) (3,369,353) 
Long service award obligations (Note 21 (iv)) (181,166) (266,548) 

Net liability in the statement of financial position (2,309,813) (3,345,519) 
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Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
21. Retirement benefit and long service award obligations (continued) 

(iv) Reconciliation of change in liabilities 

The movement in the obligations over the year is as follows: 


Funded Retirement Unfunded Retirement Long Service Award 
Benefit Obligations Benefit Obligations Obligations 

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 

At 1 January (1,258,656) (1,105,641) (3,369,353) (2,756,505) (266,548) (341,871) 
Included in income statement 
Current service charge (354,652) (319,147) (38,336) (53,586) 
Interest cost (134,589) (142,274) (390,600) (402,652) (30,258) (50,245) 
Actuarial (losses)/gains ­
change in assumptions (5,980) 131,671 
Actuarial gains - experience 142,495 34,404 

(134,589) (142,274) (745,252) (721,799) 67,921 62,244 

Included in OCI 
Actuarial (losses)/gains ­
change in assumptions (193,199) (414,742) 

Actuarial (losses)/gains ­
experience 1011867 8,524 934£335 {6,255) 

101,867 (184,675) 934,335 (420,997) 
Others 
Employee contributions (182,932) (45,506) 
Benefits paid 236,975 219,440 567,002 529,948 17,461 13,079 

54.043 173.934 567.002 529.948 17 461 13.079 

At 31 December (1,237,335) (1,258,656) (2,613,268) (3,369,353) (181,166) (266,548) 

(v) Reconciliation of change in assets 
The movement in the fair value of plan assets of the year is as follows: 

2016 2015 
N'000 N'000 

At January 1 1.549.038 1.515.353 
Included in income statement 
Interest income on plan assets 170,900 204,352 
Actual less expected return 11,886 

170,900 216,238 
Included in OCI 
Remeasurements - actuarial gains 56.061 (8,619) 
Others 
Employee contributions 182,932 45,506 
Benefits paid {236,975) {219,440) 

{54,043) {173,934) 
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Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
21. Retirement benefit and long service award obligations (continued) 

At December 31 1,721,956 1,549,038 

Less: funded retirement benefit obligations (Note 21 (iv)) (1,237,335) (1,258,656) 

Retirement benefit surplus 484,621 290,382 

(vi) Summary of items recognised in income statement and other comprehensive income 

Funded retirement benefit 
obligations 
Plan assets 
Unfunded retirement benefit 
obligations 
Long service award obligations 

2016 2015 
Income Statement OCI Income Statement Net OCI 

Employee 
benefits 

N'OOO 

Net interest 
cost 

N'OOO 

Actuarial 
gains 
N'OOO 

Employee 
benefits 

N'OOO 

Interest 
cost 

N'OOO 

Actuarial 
gains 
N'OOO 

-
-

354,652 
(98 179\ 

134,589 
(170,900) 

390,600 
30 258 

157,928 
-

934,335 
-

-
-

319,147 
1112 489\ 

142,274 
(216,238) 

402,652 
50 245 

(193,294) 
-

(420,997) 
-

256,473 384,547 1,092,263 206,658 378,933 (614,291) 

(vii) Actuarial assumptions 

The principal actuarial assumptions were as follows: 


Funded Retirement Unfunded Retirement Long Service Award 
Benefit Obligations Benefit Obligations Obligations 

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 
Discount rate 15.8% 12% 15.8% 12% 15.8% 12% 
Inflation rate 12% 9% 12% 9% 12% 9% 
Interest income rate 15.8% 12% 
Future salary/pension increases 12% 11% 12% 11 % 

Assumptions on mortality rate for the funded retirement benefit obligation is based on the PA (90) Male Table (UK 
annuitant table - published jointly by the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries, United Kingdom while that of the unfunded 
retirement benefit obligation and long service award obligation is based on the publications in the A67/70 Ultimate 
Tables, published jointly by the Institute and Faculty ofActuaries in the United Kingdom. 

The Company has developed policy guidelines for the allocation of assets to different classes with the objective of 
controlling risk. To achieve this, investment are well diversified, such that the failure of any single investment would not 
have a material impact on the overall level ofassets. 
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Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
21. Retirement benefit and long service award obligations (continued) 

For risk management purposes on the funded retirement benefit obligation, the obligations are funded by investments in 
liability matching assets. The assets are managed by external independent pension fund administrators. The plan assets 
are comprised of: 

2016 2015 
Government securities 88% 69% 
Fixed deposit /strict call 5% 15% 
Un-invested cash 0% 0% 
Corporate bond 7% 15% 

The expected return on plan assets is determined by considering the expected returns available on the assets underlying 
the current investment policy. Expected yield on fixed interest investments are based on gross redemption yields as at the 
end of the reporting period. Expected returns on government securities and quoted securities reflect long-term real rates of 
return experienced in the respective markets. 

(viii) Sensitivity analysis on liability as at 31 December 2016 

A 1 % change in assumed rates will result in the following balances to the retirement benefit scheme. 


Unfunded Retirement Benefit Obligation Funded Retirement 
Gratuity Medical and Soap packs Benefit Obligation 

N'OOO Impact(%) N'OOO Impact(%) N'OOO Impact(%) 

Base figures 2,433,856 - 179,411 - 1,237,335 -
Discount rate (-1 %) 2,590,624 6% 189,469 6% 1,297,214 5% 
Discount rate(+ 1%) 2,293,188 -6% 170,361 -5% 1,182,878 -4% 
Salary/pension increase rate (-1 %) 2,278,835 -6% - - - -
Salary/pension increase rate ( + 1 %) 2,604,572 7% - - - -
Price escalation rate (-1 %) - - 168,680 -6% - -
Price escalation rate ( + 1 %) - - 191,242 7% - -
Mortality experience (-1 year) 2,433,288 0% 179,415 0% 1,222,712 -1% 
Mortality experience(+ 1 year) 2,434,507 0% 179,406 0% 1,251,403 1% 

Long Service Award 
Obligations 

N'OOO Impact(%) 

Base figures 
Discount rate (-1 %) 
Discount rate ( + 1 %) 
Salary/pension increase rate (-1 %) 
Salary/pension increase rate ( + 1 %) 
Price escalation rate (-1 %) 
Price escalation rate ( + 1 %) 
Mortality experience (- 1 year) 
Mortality experience ( + 1 year) 

182,727 
191,688 
174,527 
175,003 
191,085 
181,045 
184,516 
182,984 
182,436 

-
5% 

-4% 
-4% 
5% 

-1% 
1% 
0% 
0% 
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Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

21. 	 Retirement benefit and long service award obligations (continued) 

Basic rates 
Assumptions for sensitivity analysis 
Discount rate (unfunded retirement benefit obligation and medical) 15.8% 
Discount rate (funded retirement benefit obligation) 15.8% 
Salary increase rate 12% 
Product/benefit inflation rate 12% 

The base figures used for the sensitivity analysis on liability is the unfunded retirement benefit obligation as at 31 
December 2016 while the base figure for sensitivity analysis on service and interest cost is the projected net period benefit 
costfor2017. 

The retirement benefits and long service award obligations are based upon independent actuarial valuation conducted by 
HR Nigeria limited (0.0. Okpaise, FRC/2012/NAS/00000000738). 

22. Contingencies and commitments 
The Company is involved in pending litigation arising in the ordinary course of business. Estimated contingent liability as at 
31 December 2016 is N233 million (2015: N314 million). The directors believe that the risk of material claims crystallising 
against the Company from pending litigation is low. 

Non-cancellable operating lease rentals included in income statement amounted to N 145 million (2015: N231 million). 
Future minimum lease payment under non-cancellable operating leases as at 31 December 2016 are as follows: 

2016 2015 
N'000 N'000 

Less than 1 year 109,290 207,992 
Between 1 and 5 years 36,108 22,773 
Total 145,398 230,765 

23. Cash flows from operating activities 
2016 2015 

N'000 N'000 
Profit before tax 4,106,422 1,771,063 

Adjustment for non-cash items: 
- Depreciation of property plant and equipment (Note 14(1)) 2,313,444 1,906,568 
- Impairment charge (Note 14(ii)) 616,712 
- Impairment reversal (Note 14(ii)) (183,053) 
- Assets write off (Note 14 (1) 2,656 10,132 
- Profit on disposals of property, plant and equipment (8,189) (77,506) 
- Amortisation of intangible assets 233,945 233,483 
- Interest income (Note 10) (333,174) (301,889) 
- Interest expense 2,721,135 3,170,516 
- Exchange gain on intercompany loan (Note 26(ii)) (509,882) 
- Net charge in retirement benefit obligations (Note 21 (vi))) 708,941 647,835 
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Notes to the financial statements (continued) 


23. Cash flows from operating activities (continued) 
- Long service award obligations (Note 21 (vi)) 

- Statute barred dividend 

- Change in employee loan receivable 

- Other employee benefits 

- Decrease in other non-current assets 


Changes in working capitol: 
- Increase in trade and other receivables 
- (lncreose)/decreose in inventory 
- Increase in payables and accrued expenses 

Cash flows generated from operating activities 

(67,921) (62,244) 
6 l ,231 140,413 
28,591 (7,617) 

(14,344) 44,390 
68,649 189,411 

(8,802,733) (1,598,414) 
(3,705,386) 2,441,484 

9,930,884 7,431,679 

6,734,269 16,372,963 

24. Fair values, including valuation hierarchy and assumptions 
The fair values of financial instruments, valuation methods and the carrying amounts shown in the Statement of financial 
position, ore as follows: 

Employee loons receivable (Note 31) 
Trade and related party receivables 
(Note l 7(i)) 

Cash and cash equivalent (Note 18) 

Trade and other payables (Note 19) 

Bank overdraft (Note 18) 

lntercompony loon (Note 26) 

Long term loon (Note 26) 

Secured bank loon (Note 26) 


Fair value 
hierarchy 

N'OOO 

2016 
Carrying 
amount 

N'OOO 

Fair 
value 
N'OOO 

Fair value 
hierarchy 

N'OOO 

2015 
Carrying 
amount 

N'OOO 

Fair 
value 
N'OOO 

Level 2 184,589 184,589 Level 2 213,180 213,180 

13, l 06,277 
12,474,141 
25,765,007 

13,106,277 
12,474,141 
25,765,007 

8,660,579 
4,435,244 

13,309,003 

8,660,579 
4,435,244 

13 309,003 

Level 2 

31,949,912 
-

15,146,720 
66,083 

702,748 
47,865,463 

31,949,912 
-

15,146,720 
66,083 

702,748 
47,865,463 

Level 2 

22,026,441 
4,535,672 

-
119,171 
898,427 

27,579,711 

22,026,441 
4,535,672 

-
119,171 
898,427 

27,579,711 

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities ore defined as being the amounts at which the instruments could be 
exchanged or liability settled in on arm's length transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties. 

Cash and cash equivalents, trade and other current receivables, bank overdrafts, trade payables, intercompony loon and 
other current liabilities hove fair values that approximate to their carrying amounts due to their short-term nature. 

Financial instruments in level 2 include the fair value of financial instruments that ore not traded in on active market (for 
example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise 
the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all 
significant inputs required to fair value on instrument ore observable, the instrument is included in level 2. 

Specific valuation technique used to value financial instruments is the discounted cash flow analysis. 
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Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

25. Related party transactions 

Unilever Nigeria Pie is controlled by Unilever Pie incorporated in the United Kingdom which is the ultimate party and 
controlling party of Unilever Nigeria Pie. There are other companies that are related to Unilever Nigeria Pie through 
common shareholdings or common directorships. 

The following transactions were carried out with related parties: 

(i) Trade mark and technology licences 
Unilever Pie, United Kingdom has given Unilever Nigeria Pie exclusive right to the know-how, manufacture, distribution 
and marketing of its international brands namely: Omo, Sunlight, Close-Up, Pepsodent, Vaseline, Lux, Knorr, Royea, 
Lipton, Blue Band and Lifebouy in Nigeria. In consideration of this, a royalty of 2% of net sales value and 0.5% of net sales 
value is payable by Unilever Nigeria Pie to Unilever Pie, United Kingdom for Technology and Trade Mark licences 
respectively. The royalty payable under these agreements for the year is Nl ,396 million (2015: Nl ,263 million). 
These licenses have been approved by the National Office for Technology Acquisition and Promotion (NOTAP). The 
certificate of registration, (Certificate No. CR006146 - Trademark License; Certificate No. CR006148 - Technology 
License) are valid from 1 January, 2016 to 31st December, 2016. Approved maximum amount payable on these licenses 
is N3,305 million. 

(ii) Central support and management services 
Unilever Nigeria Pie has a Management Services Agreement with Unilever Pie, United Kingdom for the provision of 
corporate strategic direction, and expert advice/support on legal, tax, finance, human resources and information 
technology matters. In consideration of this, a fee of 1.5% of profit before tax is payable by Unilever Nigeria Pie to Unilever 
Pie, United Kingdom. The fee payable under this agreement in 2016 was N32.2 million (2015: N45.3 million). 
This license has been approved by the National Office for Technology Acquisition and Promotion (NOTAP). The certificate 
of registration, Certificate No. CR006147, is valid from 1 January, 2016 to 31st December, 2016. Approved maximum 
amount payable on central services is N268. 9 million. 

(iii) Sale offinished goods to related parties 

2016 
N'000 

2015 
N'000 

Unilever Ghana Limited 
Unilever Cote D'Ivoire 

789,983 
2,557,929 
3,347,912 

881,162 
1,400,438 
2,281,600 

(iv) Purchases of finished goods for resale from related parties 

2016 
N'000 

2015 
N'000 

Unilever Ghana Limited 
Unilever Market Development (Pty) Limited 
Unilever Phillipines 
Unilever India 

2,734,848 
445,668 

3,180,516 

2,760,931 
281,384 
205,227 

48,229 
3,295,771 
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Notes to the financial statements (continued) 


25. Related party transactions (continued) 

(v) Loan from related parties 

Unilever Finance International AG 

(vi) Outstanding related party balances as at 31 December were: 

Receivables from related parties: 
Unilever Cote D'Ivoire 
Unilever Ghana Limited 
Other related parties (settlement on behalf of related entities) 

Payables to related parties: 
Unilever UK Pie 
Unilever Cote D'Ivoire 
Unilever Ghana Limited 
Unilever Asia Private 
Unilever Finance International AG 
Unilever NV 
Other related parties (settlement on behalf of the Company) 

2016 2015 
N'000 N'000 

15,146,720 

2016 2015 
N'000 N'000 

5,122,719 2,591,809 
2,559,294 2,134,390 
1,395,159 901,121 
9,077,172 5,627,320 

2016 2015 
N'000 N'000 

1,291,290 2,396,876 
82,974 64,060 

6,945,210 3,912,106 
4,837,178 576,811 

114,138 
1,106,103 401,125 
1,621,700 267,866 

15,998,593 7,618,844 

Related party transactions have payment terms of 30 days and 45 days for service related and goods related transactions 
respectively. 

During the year, there were no transactions between the Company and its key management personnel. Compensation 
paid to key management personnel have been disclosed in Note 7. 

26. Loans and borrowings 
This note provides information about the contractual terms of the company's interest-bearing loans and borrowing which 
are measured at amortised cost. 


Current liability 

Short term bank loan (Note 26(i)) 

lntercompany loan (Note 26(ii)) 

Current portion of long term bank loan (Note 26(iii)) 

Current portion of secured bank loan (Note 26(iv)) 


2016 2015 
N'000 N'000 

5,000,000 7,000,000 
15,146,720 

12,381 22,488 
342,175 404,055 

20,501,276 7,426,543 
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Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

26. Loans and borrowings (continued) 

Non-current liability 
Non-current portion of long term bank loan (Note 26(iii)) 
Secured bank loon (Note 26(iv)) 

53,702 
360,573 

96,683 
494,372 

414 275 591,055 

Total loans and borrowings 20,915,551 8,017,598 

(i) Short term bank loan 
The short term bank loon represents financial instruments obtained from commercial banks at on overage of 13.9% and 
are payable on demand. The loon is available for working capitol needs. 

(ii) lntercompany loan 
During the year, the Company obtained a loan facility of $59.7 million (N l 8 .8billion) from Unilever Finance International 
AG for the purpose of clearing backlog of unpaid obligations to suppliers. As at the end of the year, the total amount of 
drawdown on the facility amounts to $49.2 million (Nl 4 .98 billion) . The disbursement of the loan was mode in 2 tranches 
and repayable within one year. It is priced at an average interest rate of 6.45% plus 3 months US Libor. The loan is not 
secured on any assets ofthe Company. 

The movement on the facility is as follows: 
2016 2015 

N'000 N'000 
At l January 
Additional drawdown 15,491,446 
Exchange gain (509,882) 
Accrued interest 165.156 
At 31 December 15,146,720 

(iii) Long term bank loan 

Long term bank loan represents bank facilities obtained by the Company to fund housing loans extended to employees. 

The facility is unsecured and is for a maximum period of ten years. Interest rate is charged at 14% per annum. A portion of 

the outstanding principal amount is repaid annually. 


The movement on the facility is as follows: 
2016 2015 

N'000 N'000 
At l January 119,171 141,928 
Additional drawdown 15,000 
Repayments (53,088) (37,757) 
At 31 December 66,083 119,171 

Analysed as: 
Current 12,381 22,488 
Non current 53.702 96.683 

66,083 119,171 
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Notes to the financial statements (continued} 
26. Loans and borrowings (continued) 

(iv) Secured bank loan 
This represents the loan obtained from the Bank of Industry (BOI). The bank issued a loan of N5 billion to Unilever at 10% 
for a period of six years ending 2019. Given that Unilever has adopted the settlement date accounting policy, the amount 
recognised is the drawn down value of N 1.4 billion. The loan is secured by the guarantee of the Company's bankers and 
would be utilised to improve capital investment capacity. 
The loan was initially recognised at its fair value by discounting the expected cash outflows and deducting the applicable 
transaction costs. The difference between the present value at grant date and the original proceeds has been recognised 
as deferred income in accordance with IAS 20 (Note 27). 

Subsequently, the loan is measured using the amortised cost method as follows: 
2016 2015 

N'000 N'000 
Opening amortised cost 898,427 1,081,423 
Interest cost 178,378 219,985 

1,076,805 1,301,408 
Less repayment 
Principal (272, l 09) (272,110) 
Interest (101,948) (130,871) 

Amortised closing balance 702,748 898,427 

2016 2015 
N'000 N'000 

Analysed as: 
Current 342,175 404,055 
Non current 360,573 494,372 

702 748 828 427 
The net interest charge on the BOI loan is as follows: 

2016 2015 
N'000 N'000 

Interest expense 178,378 219,985 
Amortisation of government grant (Note 27) (32,756) (32,755) 

145 622 187 230 

27. Deferred income 
The deferred income refers to the difference between the present value at grant date and the original proceeds based on 
government grant obtained by Unilever through the N5 billion loan from the Bank of Industry. The loan is at an interest rate 
of 10% which is below the market rate and therefore represents a government benefit. The benefit is measured by the 
difference between the original loan proceeds and the present value of the loan at grant date recognised in line with IAS 
39. The benefit is recognised in interest expense to match the related cost in accordance with IAS 20. 
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Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

27. Deferred income (continued) 

At 1 January 
Transfer of transaction cost 
Additions 
Amount recognised in interest expense (Note 26) 

2016 2015 
N'000 N'000 
128,293 161,048 

(32,756) (32,755) 

At 31 December 95.537 128.293 

Amount disclosed in the statement of financial is presented below: 

Current liabilities 
Non-current liabilities 

2016 2015 
N'000 N'000 
32,756 32,756 
62,781 95,537 
95,537 128,293 

28. Other employee benefits 
Unilever operates a stakeholders' scheme geared towards promoting people enterprise and ownership culture. 


Upon confirmation, every employee is allocated 4,375 stakeholder units. These units cannot be traded within the Nigerian 

Stock Exchange and are therefore phantom shares. The scheme is cash-settled. 


Stakeholders are entitled to a yearly dividend as declared by the shareholders at the Company's Annual General Meeting. 


Upon disengagement, other than dismissal, employees would be paid the market value of shares held. This will be 

equivalentto Unilever share price on the stock exchange market at the time of exit. The market value to be paid will be pro­

rota according to length of service as follows: 

Market value to 
Length of service be paid(%) 
Less than 5 years 
5 years - 9 years 60 
10 years and above 100 

A summary of the status of the Scheme Plan as at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015 is presented below: 

As at 1 January 
Awarded 
Vested 

As at 31 December 

2016 2015 
Numbers of Shares Numbers of Shares 

1,112 1,235 
3 4 

(140) (127) 

975 l,112 
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Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

28. 	 Other employee benefits (continued) 

Share award value information 

Fair value per share award during the year (N) 


The credit in each of the last two years is shown below: 


Income statement 


Amount recognised in non current liabilities is shown below: 


Other employee benefits 


2016 	 2015 
35.05 	 43 .25 

2016 	 2015 
N'000 	 N'000 
(14,344) 	 44,390 

2016 	 2015 
N'000 	 N'000 
74,150 	 88,494 

The share-based payments are based upon independent valuation conducted by HR Nigeria limited . 
(0.0. Okpaise, FRC/2012/NAS/00000000738) 

29. Share capital and share premium 

Balance as at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2016 

Number of 
ordinary 

shares 
N'000 

3,783,296 

Ordinary Share.shares premium 
N'000 N'000 

1,891 ,649 45,717 

The authorised number of ordinary shares is 6,053,274,000 with a par value of 50kobo per share. 
Of these, 3,783,296,250 ordinary shares have been issued and fully paid. 

30. Other non-current assets 
2016 2015 

N'000 N'000 
Long term portion of employee loans 104,052 133,061 
Long term portion of prepayments 36,108 75,748 

Balance as at 31 December 140,160 208,809 

Long term portion of employee loans include long term portion of prepaid benefit and housing loan provided to 
employees. The tenor of the facilities range from a period of 2 years to maximum period of 10 years, the housing loan is at 
an interest rate of 14%. 
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Notes to the financial statements (continued} 
31. 	 Employee loan receivable 

2016 2015 
N'000 	 N'000 

Current portion of present value 72,918 85,201 
Non-current portion of present value 111 671 127 979 

184,589 213,180 

This represents the fair value of interest free loans given to staff of Unilever Nigeria Pie. These are amortised annually and 
recognised in the income statement as interest expense. They are also disclosed as part of the employee benefit for the 
period. The terms are: 
1) The fair value (i.e. present value of the future cash flow) of the loan is calculated using the market interest rate of 23% 
2) Amonthlydeduction is made from payroll overthetenorofthe loan, which is between 4 and 5 years. 
3) Terms of repayment are agreed with any staff who is exiting the business but has outstanding loan receivables. 

32. Assets classified as held for sale 

In 2015, the Company committed to a plan to sell its Non-Soapy Detergents factory located in Abo which was inoperative. 
Accordingly, the assets were presented as held for sale in the 2015 financial statements as the sale was expected to be 
made 2016. However, as at the reporting date, the sale was yet to be made due to certain circumstances which were 
beyond the Company's control. The Company remains committed to selling the assets and is actively searching for 
interested buyers. 

As at 31st December 2016, the assets are stated at carrying amount, which is lower than offer prices from potential buyers. 

Lease hold 
land 

N'000 
Buildings 

N'000 
Total 

N'000 
Cost 
Accumulated Depreciation 
Net book value as at 31st December 2016 

20,350 
(12,341) 

8,009 

326,742 
(163,340) 

163,402 

347,092 
(175,681) 

171,411 

33. Subsequent events 
There are no significant subsequent events which could have had a material effect on the state of affairs of the Company as 
at 31st December 2016 that have not been adequately provided for or disclosed in the financial statements. 
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Other national disclosures 
Value Added Statement 

2016 
N'000 % 

2015 
N'000 % 

Revenue 69,777,061 59,221,748 

Bought in materials and services: 
- local 
- imported 

Interest income 

(20,691,074) 
(33A76A87l 

15,609,500 
1,027,622 

(18,457,650) 
(271686A74l 

13,077,624 
3011889 

Value added 16,637,122 100 13,379,513 100 

Applied as follows: 
To pay employees' salaries, wages and benefits 
To provide for maintenance of assets 
To pay taxes 
To pay interest on borrowings and deposits 
Retained for Company's growth 

6,748,272 
2,313,444 
1,034,537 
2,726,245 
3,814,624 

16,637,122 

41 
14 
6 

16 
23 

100 

6,961,370 
1,906,568 

578,697 
3,170,516 

762,362 
13,379,513 

52 
14 

4 
24 

6 
100 

This statement represents the distribution of the wealth created through the use of the Company's assets through its own 
and employees' efforts. 
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Other national disclosures 
Five Year Financial Summary 

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 

Financial performance 

Revenue 69,777,061 59,221 J48 55J54l309 6010041119 55l547J98 

Gross profit 20,296,041 21,047,500 20,170,293 22,450,008 21,645,661 
Operating expenses (14,615,233) (16,485,316) (15,561 ,139) (14,635,446) (12,738,921) 
Other income/(expenses) 124,237 77,506 5,590 (23,586) (11,858) 
Net finance cost {l 16981623) {218681627) {1,741,509) {9971361) {7081895) 

Profit before taxation 4,106,422 1,771,063 2,873,235 6,793,615 8,185,987 

Taxation {l ,0341537) {5781697) {460,892) {2,069, 186) {2,588,374) 


Profit for the year 3,071,885 l,192,366 2,412,343 4,724,429 5,597,613 

Other comprehensive income 742,739 {430,004) 447,663 26,037 l 07,875 


Total comprehensive income 3,814,624 762,362 2,860,006 4,750,466 5,705,488 

Earnings per share 
(Basic and diluted) - Naira 0.81 0.32 0.64 1.25 1.48 

Capital employed 

Share capital 1,891,649 1,891,649 1,891,649 1,891,649 1,891,649 
Share premium 45,717 45,717 45,717 45,717 45,717 
Reserves 9,752,577 6,065,887 5,541,442 7,410,556 7,896,863 

11,689,943 8,003,253 7,478,808 9,347,922 9,834,229 
Shareholders' funds 

Employment of capital 

Non-current assets 30,948,762 29,164,670 27,165,096 25,352,787 21,719,351 
Net current (liobilities)/ossets (11,970,842) (13,689,839) (12,799,674) (9,671,313) (7,702,178) 
Non-current liabilities {7,287,977) {7,471,578) {6,886,614) {6,333,552) {4,182,944) 

11 1689,943 81003,253 7,478,808 913471922 918341229 

Net assets per shore (Naira) 3.09 2.12 l.98 2.47 2.60 
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Circular To Shareholders Seeking A General Mandate 
Authorizing Transactions With Related Parties Of Value 
Up To And More Than 5% Of Unilever Nigeria Pie. 
Net Tangible Assets 
In accordance with Paragraph 6.0 of the Nigerian Stock Exchange Rules Governing Transactions with Related Parties or 
Interested Persons, Unilever Nigeria Pie. hereby seeks a general mandate from shareholders in general meeting, 
authorizing the Company to enter into recurrent transactions necessary for its day to day operations such as the purchase 
and sale of supplies and materials and procurement of goods and services, with its related parties to wit Unilever Overseas 
Holdings B.V., Unilever Pie, United Kingdom and other entities within the Unilever Group, up to transactions of a value 
equal to or more than 5% of Unilever Nigeria Pie's net tangible assets. 

The following information is hereby provided in respect of the transactions forwhich the general mandate is sought: 

I. Class of interested persons with which the entity at risk will be transacting: 
a . Parent Company- Unilever Pie 
b. Holding Company- Unilever NV 
c. Other Companies within the Unilever Group 

11. Nature of transactions contemplated under the mandate 
a. Import and export of raw materials and finished goods 
b. Import and export of materials 
c. Services-Cross charges of pension costs, international assignees costs and other services such as Trade mark 

license, Technology License, Central Services and Financial services 


iii. Rationale for, and benefitto the entity 
a. Access to Unilever logo and trade marks, up to date technology and service expertise 
b. Competitive sourcing prices through negotiated transfer pricing 
c. Seamless reconciliation of transactions and balances on a line item level 
d. Pro-active, managed dispute resolution process 
e. Fu 11 transparency of a11 intercompanydifferences 
f. Enforced compliance with internal intercompany processes and external regulations 
g. Ensures adequate monitoring of receivables and payables 
h. Reduced financial risk 
I. Business continuity 

iv. Methods or procedures for determining transaction prices 
Transfer Pricing methods as follows: 
a. Comparable uncontrolled price. 
b. Resale price method. 
c. Cost plus method. 
d. Transactional net margin method. 

v. We have received Independent financial advisers' opinion which confirmed that our transfer pricing methods or 
procedures are sufficient to ensure that the transactions shall be carried out on normal commercial terms and shall not be 
prejudicial to the interests of Unilever Nigeria Pie. and its minority shareholders. 
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Circular To Shareholders Seeking A General Mandate 

Authorizing Transactions With Related Parties Of Value 

Up To And More Than 5% Of Unilever Nigeria Pie. 

Net Tangible Assets (continued} 


vi. Unilever Nigeria Pie. shall obtain a fresh mandate from the shareholders if the transfer pricing methods or procedures 
become inappropriate and 

vii. Unilever Overseas Holdings B.V. and/or Unilever Pie, United Kingdom shall abstain and has undertaken to ensure 
that its associates shall abstain from voting on the Resolution approving the general mandate. 

Dated this 16 March, 2017 
By order of the Board 

MrsAbidemi Ademola 
Legal Director and Company Secretary 
FRC/2013/NBN00000001646 

Registered Office 
l, Billings Way, 
Oregun, lkeja, 
Lagos. 
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Shareholders Information 
Unilever Nigeria Pie. Share Capital History 
S/N YEAR BONUS RATIO SHARE CAPITAL 
1 1976 1:2 21,522,752 
2 1977 3:2 53,806,880 
3 1978 1:2 80,710,320 
4 1979 1:4 100 887 900 

1980 1:15 107,613,760 
6 1981 NIL 107,613,760 
7 1982 NIL 107,613,760 
8 1983 NIL 107 613 760 
9 1984 NIL 107,613 760 

1985 1:4 134,517,200 
11 1986 NIL 134,517,200 
12 1987 NIL 134,517 200 
13 1988 NIL 134,517 200 
14 1989 1:2 201,775,800 

1990 1:3 269,034,400 
16 1991 NIL 269,034 400 
17 1992 NIL 269,034 400 
18 1993 1:3 358,712,533 
19 1994 1:2 538,068,800 

1995 1:4 672,586,000 
21 1996 1:2 1,008 879 000 
22 1997 NIL 1,008 879,000 
23 1998 1:5 1,210,654,800 
24 1999 NIL 1,210,654,800 

2000 NIL 1,210,654,800 
26 2001 NIL 1,210,654,800 
27 2002 3:2 3,026,637,000 
28 2003 NIL 3,026,637,000 
29 2004 NIL 3,026 637 000 

2005 NIL 3,026 637,000 
31 2006 1:4 3,783 296,250 
32 2007 NIL 3,783,296,250 
33 2008 NIL 3,783,296,250 
34 2009 NIL 3,783 296 250 

2010 NIL 3,783 296,250 
36 2011 NIL 3,783 296,250 
37 2012 NIL 3,783,296,250 
38 2013 NIL 3,783,296,250 
39 2014 NIL 3,783,296,250 

2015 NIL 3,783,296,250 
41 2016 NIL 3,783,296,250 
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Shareholders Information 
Range Analysis as at December 31, 2016 

Share 
Range 

Number Of 
Shareholders 

%of 
Shareholder 

Number Of 
Holdings 

0/o 
Shareholding 

1­
1,000 35,795 38.59 15,581,094 0.41 

1,001­
5,000 32,357 

34.88 85,324,290 2.26 

5,001­
10,000 9,574 10.32 73,975,946 1.96 

10,001­
50,000 11,163 12.03 250,572,399 6.62 

50,001­
100,000 2,189 2.36 157,653,358 4.17 

100,001­
500,000 1,478 1.59 245,078,007 6.48 

500,001­
1,000,000 

109 0.12 75,605,909 2.00 

1,000,001 
and Above 90 

0.10 2,879,505,247 76.11 

TOTAL 92,755 100.00 3,783,296,250 100.00 

Shareholders with Shareholding values of 5% and above 

Shareholder Number of Percentage 
Shares held(%) 

Unilever Overseas 
(Cumulative holding) 

2,271,998,143 60.06% 

Stanbic Nominees 394,484,759 10.43% 
Nigeria Ltd 
(Cumulative holding) 
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TICK COMPANY NAME 

~plost Produ<U PI.C 

Alumlnlum ei:trusk,r, PLC 

Olshc!W Nut Proc:e,51ng lndustrtes­
PlC 
Oiellaram> PLC 

CMstlil!bPl.C 

~A Group orCompanies Pk 
Serles Tranche L & 2 

Etobank- Traru;na,lJonal 
lnCO'JIOC!ted (Na~a) 
Ecobanlc. Transnational 
lnco rated USO) 
EklU state Bond Tranclle l a2 

El(OClJIIP PLC 

aerna 011 PLC 

Fi1'St Alu,,.nlum PLC 

GlaxoSmlt'1Kllne Ntger1a PLC 

Global Bioruel, Nlgena Limited 

llto_Ja Hotels PLC 

lmpresrt a.~olort PI.C 

lndustrii!III &General Insurance PLC 

IPWA PLC 

Jo~n Holts PLC 

Julius S.rgor Nl!11!!1a' PLC 

KaJola lntejlrate<I &Investment 
Com PLC 
Len""rd' >ageria PLC 

Loo,I Contractors Reoervables' 
Bond Tranclle 1,2 & 3 
M~I 011 Nl9er1a PLC 

Nestle Nlgeri,, PLC 

,Nlgerla RelMtJrance 

Nlgenao En•m•lwa"' Company 
PLC 
Nigerian Lamps Industries 

Nigerian WIO! &.Clll:le PLC 

Okltfpupa Oil Palm PLC 

Oluwa Glass COMPNIY 

Seven-Up Bottling Comc>ollY PLC 

Tnpple Goe a Company Pt.C 

u Fi~t<l Nio BIiiion Bond Selles 
I Bor,d 

UBN Prupany lffilod 

Unllever N~eria PLC 

un1onAssuranoe ~all)' Uml1ed 
{NOW En,ure Insurance) 
Union l!ank of Nigeria PLC 

union Homes REITS 

Union HomoSavings a Loans. PLC 

WEM~ l!an~ PLC 

HAREHOLDERS 
CCOUNT NO. 

Only Clearing Banks a re acceptable 

Instruction 

Please complete all section of this form to make it eligible for processing and 
return to the address below 
The RegI stra r 
GTL REGISTRARS LtMITED 
No 2, Burma Road 
Apapa 
Lagos 

1/VVe here by request that henceforth, all my/our Dividend Payment(s) due to 
me/us from my/our holdings in all the companies ticked at the right hand column 
be credited directly to my/our bank detailed below: 

Bank Verification Number 

Bank Name 

Bank Account Number 

Account Opening Date 

Shareholder Account Information 
surname/Company Name First Name Other Name 

State Country 

Previous Address (If any) 

cscs Clearing House Number 

"Mobile Number 1 Mobile Number 2 

Email Address 

Shareholder's Signature 

Joint/Companies Signatures 

Company Seal (If applicable) 

Help Desk Telephone No/Contact Centre 

Information for Issue resolution or clarificat1on : 

+ 234-(0)1-2917747, +234-(0)1-2793160-2 . 

GTL Registrars L1m1te d 

,Veh,1tr· www ~ltlreg1.stnr1:, com Ern.:ul 111fO'.Q gtlre~,u~trnr,, (]tn 
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Product Range 


CLOSEUP 

Unilever's toothpaste brand - Closeup, the leader in the 
Nigerian Oral Care Category, had an impressive year in 
2016 

The brand continued to set the pace by being at the 
forefront of blazing digital campaigns with the Closeup 
'Cupid Games' that drove conversation, awareness and 
high level engagement among over 20 million 
Nigerians. The brand brought excitement to the 
competition by partnering with popular celebrity, 
'Davida' to further connect to the Nigerian youth across 
all touch points. 

Closeup continues to maintain the lead in the Nigerian 
market with new, exciting offers and activities to delight 
our consumers. 

PEPSODENT 

Pepsodent continues to reinforce Unilever's footprint in 
the Oral Health Segment leveraging its two key variants 
Pepsodent Cavity Fighter and Pepsodent Triple Protection 
Toothpaste - that delivers three benefits of Cavity 
Prevention, Whitening and Fresh Breath. 

Together with our partners, the Federal (and State) 
Ministry of Health and Nigerian Dental Association. 
Pepsodent as continued to improve the oral health and 
well being of Nigerians. In 2016, Pepsodent and the 
Federal Ministry of Health partnered on the Brush Day 
and Night Schools Programme. To date, Pepsodent has 
reached over 3 million Nigerian children in government 
schools across the country with products and educational 
materials 

To further promote oral health in Nigeria, Pepsodent in 
collaboration with the Federal Government of Nigeria, 
Nigerian Dental Association and Pan - Nigeria NGOs 
celebrated World Oral Health Day 2016 to promote 
awareness of issues surrounding oral health and the 
importance of oral hygiene in the Country. 

Overall, Pepsodent had a monumental year in 2016, 
yielding fulfilling results. Pepsodent Nigeria emerged 1st 
in the Oral Care Social Mission Competition, becoming 
the first African country to achieve this recognition . 
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Product Range (continued) 


KNORR 

"Taste the Knorr difference" 


Knorr's Vision is to help women around the world to 
simply prepare more delicious and nutritious meals every 
day. Knorr brings flavour to people's lives: "We help 
unlock the forward moving potential of young Nigerian 
women." Attributes such as Authenticity, Generosity, 
Inspiration, Joy are at the very core of the brand. 

The Knorr cube is a premium product that delivers 
superiority on Taste. The Beef variant brings out the very 
best in dishes making it burst with tantalizing flavour, 
while the Chicken variant is made with real chicken 
bringing out the best in all your dishes. 

The brand always puts its consumers at the heart of 
everything which is why Nigeria's favorite TV cooking 
competition, Knorr Taste Quest was back on air with a 
scintillating fourth season tagged, "The Search for the 
Seasoned One" which showcased an array of talent and 
took culinary expertise to a whole new level. 

To further add value to the lives of our consumers, Knorr 
Force for Good Program was launched. It is aimed at 
addressing Iron Deficiency in Nigeria by driving 
behavioural change amongst mothers and young girls 
through sensitization programs in schools and 
communities. Roughly half of the anaemia cases are 
caused by iron deficiency. In 2008, it was estimated that 
almost 25% of the world's population is suffering from 
anaemia. In Nigeria, an estimated 49% of women at 
reproductive age have anaemia. 

Also, the brand reached out to school children and 
members of the IDP camp on World Food Day with 
amplification on social media through the 'Share A Meal' 
campaign. 

VASELINE 

Infused with healing micro-droplets of Vaseline® Jelly 
and rich moisturizers, Vaseline® Lotions and creams 
absorb deeply to heal dry skin and moisturize deep down. 
Vaseline is available in Lotions, creams and Jelly formats. 
The lotions and creams were introduced into the Nigerian 
market in January 2014 and are available in Cocoa Glow 
and Total Moisture variants. 

Vaseline® believes that truly healthy skin starts with deep 
healing moisture. It's not something you get by masking 
problems or through quick fixes. We know this because 
we are the original skin experts. For over 30 years, 
Vaseline has been helping mothers to nurture their babies 
from generations to generations in Nigeria 

Vaseline is a strategic brand within the Unilever Nigeria 
Portfolio. To this day, Vaseline® Jelly is the only petroleum 
jelly in Nigeria and the world with a triple-purification 
seal. This certifies that every jar of Vaseline® Jelly is 
purified not once, but three times before it ever reaches a 
shelf. It is filtered and distilled to clean, and de-aerated to 
remove air bubbles, ensuring every jar is completely pure. 
· Number 1 position across more than half the world 
· Proprietary body-responsive technology 
· One ofthe fastest growing brands in Unilever across the 

world 
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Product Range (continued) 


LIFEBUOY SUNLIGHT 
Lifebuoy is a top health soap in the world with strong social Sunlight Detergent offers consumers two benefits in one ­
mission of enlightening families about the most effective Great cleaning and Sensational fragrance. It offers 
and affordable protection against germs. Its includes Nigerians the best laundry experience with great value 
Lifebuoy Total Protection, Lifebuoy Herbal, Lifebuoy Care and in 2016, we re-launched the brand with an improved 
and Lifebuoy Deofresh, all offer 99.9% protection from fragrance and packaging. Consumers and notable 
germs. In addition, the Lifebuoy Herbal contains nature's celebrities got a first hand experience of the sensational 
finest ingredients for added protection and skin long-lasting fragrance of the new improved Sunlight 2­
nourishment. Lifebouy Care helps moisturize the body as it in- l detergent during the launch activation and via other 
contains additional moisturizer which prevents the skin shopper activities. 
from drying out. Lifebouy Deofresh contains fragrance and 
stripping which are linked with freshness. In 2016, Sunlight also reached millions of consumers 
Diarrhoea, respiratory tract infections and neonatal through two drama series; Alarambara (a Yoruba 
infections can be reduced by hand washing with soap, language radio drama) and Laraba's World (a Hausa 
which is one of the most cost effective means of disease language radio drama) to further strengthen the image 
prevention. Lifebuoy aims to encourage the practice of of the Sunlight Woman who is wise, resilient and versatile. 
hand washing with soap as an effective means of The brand also executed various promotions to reward 
preventing diseases and helping children reach the age of our loyal consumers and retailers. 
5. 

LUX 
Lux has five variants across two pack sizes (65g & l 25g) .The Lux 
Collection are Lux Soft Touch, Lux Soft Caress, Lux Velvet Touch, Lux 
Shake Me Up and Lux Wake Me Up. The Lux Collection contains Silk 
Essence T M , an exclusive blend of carefully selected flower extracts, silk 
protein and delicate essential oils, known to leave the skin feeling silky 
soft and irresistible to touch. 

The Lux Collection leaves your skin soft and fragrant, helping women 
unlock their beauty. Lux works with the world's best perfumers to create 
beauty treats infused with the finest fragrances. Lux aspires to make each 
Lux experience a delight to the senses, making women feel fabulously 
feminine, every day. 
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Product Range (continued) 


BLUEBAND 
Blue Band margarine has been growing great kids in 
Nigeria for over 30 years, by offering the winning 
combination of great taste and good nutrition for kids' 
growth and development. Moms as nutritional gate 
keepers are able to fulfil their responsibility of providing 
nutritious and tasty meals for their kids, with the help of 
blue band which contains essential vitamins (Vitamins A, 
B6, B 12, D, E, Folic acid & Niacin), that are necessary for 
kids growth, and provides a tasty addition to most meals. 

Blue Band is available in two variants: 
• Blue Band Original: This comes in two pack sizes (250g 
& 4509) that can be used for spreading, cooking and 
baking. 

• Blue Band Spread for Bread: This is a lowfat spread that 
is recommended for spreading alone. It comes in 5 pack 
sizes (15g, 75g, 2509, 450g & 9009). 

ROYCO 
"The sweet taste of home" 

Royea helps build sweet homes because this is the 
foundation of a nation. Attributes such as Pragmatic, 
Grounded, Joyful are atthe very core of the brand. 

The Royea woman is a very loving builder of a great 
home. She is a humble woman who is pragmatic at heart. 
She is proud to be a wife and mother who cheerfully gives 
to her beloved ones, thus becoming the soul of the 
household. One way she does this is by providing her 
husband and family with the delicious traditional food 
that they love. She embraces progress whilst staying 
rooted in traditions that matter to her and her community. 

The Royea cube brings out a unique aroma and an 
authentic taste in dishes, plus it smells so delicious. The 
Royea portfolio is one that caters to the varying needs of 
consumers. The Royea range includes the beef variant, 
chicken variant and goat meat variant. 

2016 was a year of great milestones for Royea. The brand 
brought back it's well-loved cooking show Royea 
Maidandano which last aired in 2005. It is a family TV 
game show centered on food recipes, food tasting, family 
values, and quizzes, and is accompanied by exciting 
community and trade engagements. 
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Product Range (continued) 


LIPTON 
Lipton Yellow Label Tea remains an undisputed market 
leader in the Nigerian Tea category, and is the flagship 
tea brand for Unilever. Our consumers maintain that 
Lipton is a healthy beverage with nutritional benefits 
which can help to sharpen the mind and can be taking 
hot or cold. These health benefits are delivered in tea 
bags packed full of flavor and guaranteed freshness to 
brighten one's day. 

In 2016, the brand embarked on a number of activities to 
further endear herself to consumers. One of the key 
activities was the Ramadan Campaign where the brand 
celebrated with the Muslims during this period. The 

campaign was tagged : "Don't Just Think; Do" which 
further expands to "This Ramadan, Don't Just Think about 
being a better person, Do it - Take Action." The insight 
came from a fundamental truth that people always want 
to do good deeds, reach out, connect and share with 
others, however, our busy lives often get in the way of 
actually doing them. This human truth embedded in the 
core of the campaign idea made it easy for consumers, 
Muslims & Christians alike, to resonate with it. 

A major part of the campaign 'Giving back' & the brand 
brought it to life via sampling activities at major Mosques 
& donations at charity homes across the country. The 
campaign was brought to life at every touch point in our 
consumers' lives with key focus on mobile & trade. 
Through these platforms, the message of 'Don't just 
Think; Do' was solidified in the minds of our consumers as 
Lipton enabled consumers pause for a mental & physical 
boost & awaken to what truly matters 

This campaign also won an award at the ADVAN 
(Advertisers Association of Nigeria) Awards for Marketing 
Excellence emerging 1st Runner-Up in the Experiential 
Marketing Category of the 2016 edition of the yearly 
event which held in October 2016. 

OMO 
For over 50 years, Omo has been a staple in the homes of Nigerian 
consumers. The brand has been reformulated over the years to serve the 
Nigerian consumer better. Omo Fast Action was launched in 2015 with a 
competitive formulation and a strong call to action "No one removes tough 
stains faster". 

Omo Fast Action contains max clean particles/speckles that penetrate the 
fabric to remove tough stains fast. It comes in various pack sizes to meet 
different consumer needs. 

The brand engaged with consumers via different touch points: traditional media, digital media and point of sale. In 
addition to TV & Radio deployment, the brand also executed the 'Giant Pack Promo' in selected stores nationwide. The gifts 
that were won included washing machines, school bags, lunch bags, umbrellas, pegs, exercise books amongst others. 
A host of trade promotions/incentives, winning TV and radio commercial (communicating brand benefits and the N50 
pack size) and digital media engagement all helped to build brand love and drove consumers and customers to re­
appraise the brand. 
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Product Range (continued) 


REXONA 
Rexona, the world's number one anti-perspirant 
deodorant from the stables of Unilever Nigeria, officially 
made its entry into the Nigerian market in 2014. 

REXONA DEODORANT, IT WON'T LET YOU DOWN, 
AND THE TRADITION STARTS RIGHT HERE! 

Rexona was originally created in Australia. Since then it 
has led the field by providing consumers with cutting­
edge technology that is proven to deliver outstanding 
results. It is now sold around the world . 

WHAT MAKES REXONA TICK? 
They happen every day. Those unexpected moments 
when the adrenalin starts to pump and the sweat starts to 
flow. With Rexona's unique body-responsive technology, 
which releases extra protection as you need it, you'll know 
that your deodorant won't let you down. Better still, 
everyone can enjoy this peace of mind as Rexona is 
tailored to the needs of both sexes, with separate product 
ranges for each. 

PIONEERING BIGGER, BETTER RESULTS 
Rexona is now present in Nigeria and the revolutionary 
new Rexona for Men range addresses men's very 
particular physiological needs. 

KEY FACTS 
· World's largest deodorant in sales and market shares 

Estimated at over 2 Billion Euros annual Turnover 
Number 1 position across more than half the world 
Prop ri eta ry body-res pons ive tech noIogy 
One of the fastest growing brands in Unilever across the 
world. 

PEARS 
Pears was first launched into the market in 1971, as the 
no.1 indigenous baby care brand in Nigeria. Despite the 
domineering presence of imported baby care products in 
those days, Pears survived, and has remained a relevant 
player and leader in the Nigerian baby care market, for 
over 40 years now. 

Pears baby product is a local jewel, trusted and 
recommended by Hospitals and medical professionals as 
the ideal baby care product. The Pears brand consisting 
of baby powder, moisturizing cream, baby jelly and lotion 
has continued its trusted performance and growth. The 
brand continues to enjoy a strong consumer patronage 
and is a favorite household name across the country. 

Pears' Baby Jelly 
Pears' Baby Jelly protects baby's skin most especially the 
bottom from coming in contact with urine and feaces 
which could result in rashes and cause infection and ill­
health for the body. 
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Product Range (continued) 

Pears' Baby Oil 
Pears' Baby Oil is so light that it rubs well on the baby's skin. Pears' Baby Oil prevents dryness and ensures easy combing 
and styling when applied to baby's hair. A little goes a long way. 

Pears' Baby Powder 
It smoothens and protects baby's skin against rashes which could arise from heat and sweating. 

Pears' Baby Lotion/Moisturizing Cream 
Keeps baby's skin soft, smooth, shiny and prevents dryness. 

Pears is well known for its mildness and suitability for baby's sensitive and delicate skin. All Pears' Products contain Olive 
Oil, which is a naturally sourced oil. Pears' unique perfume keeps babies smelling fresh and thereby attractive, making the 
mother proud to show off her baby. 

Looking ahead, Pears is revamping its packaging look and feel to ensure she is able to compete favorably in the baby care 
market. 

SUNLIGHT DISHWASH 

Unilever Nigeria Pie launched its Sunlight dish washing 
liquid into the Nigerian market in September 2014. 

Sunlight dish washing liquid provides superior 
degreasing benefits even for the toughest oil stains and is 
also affordable for households where cheap proxy 
products like sand, ash and detergent powder are used 
for dish washing. Sunlight dish washing liquid has been 

introduced to make dish washing less stressful and time 
consuming, giving more time for the things that really 
matter, like family. Sunlight dish washing liquid has an 
advanced, turbo-active formula with real lemon juice to 
deliver superior cleaning. It weakens even the stickiest oil 
stains faster, is easy to rinse off and leaves dishes perfectly 
clean, odour-free with no marks or particles left behind. 

Globally, Sunlight dish washing liquid is the number one 
dish washing solution, known for its superior benefits 
around the world and Unilever Nigeria aims to continue 
that tradition with this launch. Unilever Nigeria Pie has 
built a liquids factory in Agbara, Ogun State and is 
looking to expand its footprint in the household care 
category in the nearest future. 
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Proxy Form 
92nd ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING TO BE HELD AT 
l 0.00 AM ON THURSDAY 11 MAY, 2017 AT THE SHELL 
HALL, MUSON CENTRE, ON IKAN, LAGOS. 

I/WE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . being a member/ 
Members of UNILEVER NIGERIA PLC, hereby 
appoint** 

of ................ .. .. .. .................. .. .................... .. . . or 
failing him, the Chairman of the meeting as my/our 
proxy to act and vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at 
the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held 
on 11 May, 2017 and atanyadjournmentthereof: 

Dated this ......... .... .. ........... day of..... .. .......... 2017 


Shareholder's Signature ................. .. .. ................. . 


IF YOU ARE UNABLE TO ATTEND THE MEETING 
A Member (Shareholder) who is unable to attend the 
Annual General Meeting is allowed by law to vote on a 
poll by proxy. The above proxy form has been prepared to 
enable you to exercise your right to vote, in case you 
cannot personally attend the Meeting. 

Following the normal practice, the Chairman of the 
Company has been entered on the Form to ensure that 
someone will be at the Meeting to act as your proxy but if 
you wish you may insert in the blank space on the form 
(marked**) the name of any person, whether a member 
of the Company or not, who will attend the Meeting and 
vote on your behalf instead. 

Please sign this proxy form and send it, so as to reach the 
address shown overleaf not later than l 0.00 a.m. on 9 
May, 2017. If executed by a Corporation, the Proxy Form 
should be sealed with the Common Seal. 

The Proxy must produce the Admission Form within the 
Annual Report and Financial Statements booklet to obtain 
entrance to the Meeting. 
A Member voting in his own right as a member and also 
voting as proxy for another or other members should fill 
one voting paper for his own holding and a separate 
paper for each ofthe members he is representing. 

I For Company use only I No. of Shares I 
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ORDINARY BUSINESS 

RESOLUTION FOR AGAINST ABSTAIN 

To declare a dividend 

To re-elect MRS ABIOLA 

ALABI as a Director 

To re-elect MR JAMES 

TODD as a Director 

To re-elect HIS MAJESTY 

NNEMEKA A. ACHEBE 

nc:: n Din::irfnr 

To re-elect MR FELIX 

ENWEMADU as a Director 

To authorise Directors to 

fix the Auditor's 

Remuneration 

To elect Shareholders' 

Representatives on the 

Audit Committee 


SPECIAL BUSINESS 
To fix the Directors' Fees 
To approve a general 
mandate authorizing the 
Company during the 2017 
financial year and up to 
the dote of the next AGM, 
to procure goods and 
services necessary for its 
day to day operations 
from its related parties or 
interested persons on 
normal commercial terms 
consistent with the 
Company's Transfer Pricing 
Policv 
To increase the Authorised 
Share Capital of the 
Company to NS Billion 
Special Resolution to amend 
the Articles of Association of 
the Company to reflect the 
new authorised Share Capital 
of NS Billion 
To pass the sub-joined 
Resolutions authorizing the 
Directors to raise up to N63 
Billion by way of Rights Issue 
subiect to Regulatory approvals 
Please indicate with on 'X' in the appropriate square how 
you wish your votes to be cast on the resolutions referred 
to above. Unless otherwise instructed, the proxy will vote 
or abstain from voting at his discretion. 



THE REGISTRAR 
GTL REGISTRARS LIMITED, 
27 4, MURTALA MUHAMMED WAY, 
ALAGOMEJI, YABA LAGOS. 

Please 
affix postage 

stamp 
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Connected For Growth 
www.unilevernigeria.com 

• 

http:www.unilevernigeria.com
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